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Out of thousand of Compliment from student sent to mail laying down some of the compliment about book. 

suhani agarwal agarwalsuhani1991@gmail.com 

 This is a fellow ca final student. I am guessing you might be a CA by now. I can say so because I came 
across your prepared notes of FR and Audit and I must say they are seriously AWESOME. I got them in a WhatsApp 
group and I cannot express exactly how thankful I feel to God for coming across those notes prepared by you. I must 
congratulate and appreciate the efforts you have put in the book. Stay blessed. 

 
Apart from appreciating I am sending you this mail to request you to mail me similar notes prepared by you for other 
subjects of ca final. Although I am a student in the new syllabus but still I believe majority portion of ur notes will be of 
great help.  
 
Thanking you in advance 
Waiting in anticipation 
Ca final student 
 

Sumit W  sumitw075@gmail.com  

Dear Sir, 
Please send me pdf of your books for CA Final subjects applicable for november 2018. 

 
Thanks. 

shobhit srivastava shobhitsrivastava@live.in 

 Dear Imran Sir 

  
Please Share CA final Financial Reporting Book made by You for us 

  
THANKS  
FROM : SHOBHIT 
Sent from Mail for Windows 10 

 
Haresh Rane  raneharesh90@gmail.com 

        Dear Sir, 
 
         kindly send me your pdf notes. 
  
         It is more useful. 
 
          Thank you Sir 

 ashish tulshyan astulshyan@gmail.com 

Dear sir, 

recently i have came across a book which is written by you. 

that summary book is really very helpful for CA Final. 

I will be highly grateful to you if you could accept my this request and provide me all this summary books of all the 
subjects of CA NEW Final Course. 

                   Regards, 

               Ashish Tulshyan 

               M: +91 7890590323 
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By, CA MD IMRAN (Chartered Accountant, M.com, B.com(H) ), M -9534019752, E- freebookmdimran@gmail.com      INDIA 

                Email: astulshyan@gmail.com 

 

Kausar Ali kausarali.ca@gmail.com 

Hello Sir, 
I need ca final group 1 summary notes n preparation strategy for Nov 2018 attempt. 
 
Please guide 
 
Thank You &  ل زاك ال   هُ ج
 

Simran Bakhtiyar simranbakhtiyar96@gmail.com 

Respected Sir,  

 

I request you to kindly provide us with your valuable notes for CA Finals May 2018 under revised scheme.  

I have gone through your previous notes in caclubindia and believe its amazing..
Looking for a positive response. 

Thanks and Regards, 

Simran Bakhtiyar 

Email: simranbakhtiyar96@gmail.com 

AFSANA POPATIA afsanapopatia@gmail.com 

Respected sir,  
 
Your notes are very much helpful.  Thanks for sharing... 
 

Kushal Ladha kushalz.ladha@gmail.com 

Dear sir, 
 
This is kushal here, your notes are great .Do you have any notes for final costing? Sir i need your guidance if u can 
help me ..I have my exams in May 2018. 
 
Regards 
Rugved More more.rugved93@gmail.com 

I really appreciate and thankful to you for sharing Audit, Law & Accounts notes. 
Thank you so much. 
 

 

Shivam Gupta sg4u17@gmail.com 

sir, 
              i am shivam gupta from jaipur rajasthan , i am a ca final student, i am read your financial reporting notes, he 
is awesome and he is very useful to study  
 
sir i went to sfm notes who cover all the concept in some pages please provide notes and any teacher name who 
provide all the concept (just like you cover all concept) 
 
 
i am wait your responses 
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By, CA MD IMRAN (Chartered Accountant, M.com, B.com(H) ), M -9534019752, E- freebookmdimran@gmail.com      INDIA 

      
 
 
thank you sir  
you make notes for student 
 

Chandra Babu cbabu141@gmail.com 

 

Thank u sir for audit & Fr summary notes.. 
 
In corporate law some chapters i found online but not found allied laws notes sir, 
 
please sir if any allied laws with menmonics codes available, please mailme. if not free of cost please tell the cost i will 
pay sir 
 
thank u sir, dhanyavaad, 
 

padma maduri padma.maduri24@gmail.com 

Hi Sir...  
I have found very much comfort in reading u r book for auditing..... As their amendments for Nov 17attempt ...i would 
like know when you will be publishing the revised edition including amendments for Nov 17attempt....Eagerly Waiting 
for the book Sir... Excepting very soon Sir...  
Thanking you...  
 
 
 
                                            Yours faithfully.                                                Padma  

The Sandesh Kadam kadamsandesh848@gmail.com 

Hi Imran Sir, 
  I read your Audit summary book, It is marvelous. 
Can you please tell me how to present answers in the exam. 
If you have written an article on it then kindly send me the link.
 
 
 
Thank you for sharing notes 
.  

karthik <carthic.ramani@gmail.com> 
 

Respected Sir, 
 
I had followed your book attached herewith for May 2017 exams and i had secured 56 marks in Auditing, but 
unfortunately i had lost my first group with an aggregate of 189. 
 
Am writing m November 2017 exams. Are there any amendments in auditing or shall i prepare with the same book? 
can you please advise ? 
 
Also, if you have final materials for any other subjects, please can you share them? 

Neha Sharma nehajairajsharma@gmail.com 

Dear M D Imran Sir, 

This is Neha Sharma. I had used your freebook for audit. The book is really a very good and handy book.  

Unfortunately I couldn't get through with my CA final exams. I would be really pleased if I can get your guidance to 
clear my exams.  
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By, CA MD IMRAN (Chartered Accountant, M.com, B.com(H) ), M -9534019752, E- freebookmdimran@gmail.com      INDIA 

Sir can you please share me your contact number on the same email id. 

Warm Regards 

Neha J Sharma 

Email: nehajairajsharma@gmail.com 

Contact: 9029711742 

Thank you so much Sir 

 
Anshu Agarwal <agarwal.anshu24@gmail.com> 
 

Sir I have read your notes of FR and found them really helpful.  
But i have notes those are old.  

 

 
kautilya seeswal  kautilyatul@gmail.com 

RESPECTED IMRAAN sir 
 
                                      THIS IS ATUL i see your book which contains great understanding and analytical approach 
to each and every aspect of auditing in a comprehensive way. great sir ji........ wiase main abhi ipcc main hu sir 
........thanks kya ye book market main available hai......i was seeking it but unfortunately could not find........thanks
sir... 
 
 
           khuda aapki health aacchi rakhe..............bye bye sir  

sir ji aaameeennn khuda kare aap bahut naam kamaoooo  .........hum dab3ki duaaa aapke saath hai 

aditya .... aditya.220890@gmail.com 

Hello, 
 
I really liked the the law notes which u have made for CA Final.. 
 
I wanted to ask u whether u have prepared the summary notes for entire Directors portion of ca final law.. if yes can 
u please mail me the notes? 
 
Thank You 
VENKAT KUMAR REDDY KOTHA <venkeykotha777@gmail.com> 
 

Hi Sir, 
 
I have seen your auditing e book on the web (which is uploaded long time ago).  
Thanks for the same. 
 
Please help me, i am going to write my CA final exams in May 2018. I started studying for the same. Suggest me 
from where i should start the subject and how. And please provide me the notes if any. 
 
My sincere thanks to you Sir 
 
Regards, 
Venkat 

Thank you soo much Sir 

Venu Gopala Swamy Adimulam avgswamy2013@gmail.com 

Sir, 
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By, CA MD IMRAN (Chartered Accountant, M.com, B.com(H) ), M -9534019752, E- freebookmdimran@gmail.com      INDIA 

I am CA Final student. I want your summary notes for the subjects  
 
Corporate and Allied Laws 
Advanced Management Accounting 
Information Systems Control and Audit 
Direct Taxes 
Indirect Taxes 
 
If those are available with you please forward it to this mail as early as possible. 
 
Thanking You Sir 
 
Indugu Srikanth 

 

Dixit prajapati dxt003@gmail.com 

Hi MD IMRAN. I dixit prajapati, found you book very very effective. Right now I am reading audit book for tomorrow 
exam. I request you to send law book such as audit for law exams. Again your notes is really really useful. Please 
send me law book (CA final).
 
Sent from my iPhone 

 
jason cresent <jasoncresent99@gmail.com> 
 

Dear Imran bhai, 
 
Soooo.... Thankful to you for your Complete Audit Book for CA Final... and the same is now helping me a lot for 
revision of Audit, which never ends at the time of my exam. 
This time i'm sure that I'll get out of 1st group any way... (previously 48,52,33,48). 
Now worked on practical papers and law a bit more.... But Audit i'm not confident till i saw and remember the 
contents in your book. 
Again thankful to you.. and not awaited to say Thank u in this busy revision time even.... Like you most bhai... Thank 
u very much for your support and I will forward this to as many as I can..... 

Chinmay chinmay.m245@gmail.com 

Dear Imran,  
 
Thank you for sharing your concise notes.  I really appreciate the fact that you have compiled the notes in such a 
user friendly manner covering P.M. Points in a methodical and easy to remember manner. Currently I have found 
notes on FR and Auditing and PE for CA final.  If you have any notes for SFM and CA final law,  i would love to study 
from them also (IT WOULD BE NICE IF YOU E-MAIL THEM TO ME OR PROVIDE GOOGLE DRIVE LINKS) . Keep 
up doing this great work and I thank you for giving educative material that too for free!!! My blessings and regards. 

PuNeeT KhanDeLwaL iscoolha@gmail.com 

Hello sir, 
I am Govind. Firstly I would say thanks to you for uploading summary notes of allied law and some topics of 
company law.... It helps me a lot in learning. Sir I am requesting you to kindly provide whole notes of company law... 
It would be great help for me. 
Thank you sir  
 
hashank Chandra shashankchandra225@gmail.com 
 
 
Dear Sir, 
 
Thank you very Much for a wonderful book on audit for CA Final, It saves a lot of time and helps in quick 
understanding of concepts. The help which you have done in the form of book for audit during exams time is 
unforgettable. Do i need to incorporate any changes so as to make use of the book for May'17 Attempt. 
 
Thanks & Regards 
K.Shashank Chandra 
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Prashant Channa prashantchanna74@gmail.com 

Thank you imran for sharing such summary notes for better preparation. 
It is concise and simple. 
It will be very helpful during exam  
time. 
 
I would be really appreciated if you could provide with same summary notes for corporate and allied law for may 17. 
 
As Law subject is very vast and most of the time we couldn't able to revise it in exam time. 
 
 
Thanking you in advance. 
 
Krishna Sharma kkritag@gmail.com 

Dear Sir, 
This is Krishna from Nepal. I really loved the summary notes prepared by you of CA Final Audit and Company 
Law. Thank you so much for helping us. But I could not find the summary note of other parts of CA Final Law (I 
found the note of Company law only). Have you prepared the note of other parts(remaining parts of Corporate law 
and Allied law), sir ? If yes, Please let me know the link to download it.  
Once Again, I'm truly thankful to you. 
 
 
Thanking You 

Devendra Kuple devendra87kuple@gmail.com 

Respected sir,
                       I Devendra Kuple, student of C.A Final. I downloaded your notes from online of Advance Auditing 
covered in 101 pages. 
                      Just want to confirm with you that for may 17 exam is this much enough or your have anything extra 
to be considered along with that notes. I have started refering your notes while solving practice manual. It is very 
much useful. But there are certain point which are there in p.m but not in notes.
                    Also i was trying your mobile no. , but it seems to be out of coverage area. Please guide me how to 
come across audit subject in c.a final. 
                   Thank you sir. Waiting for your reply. 

 
CHANDRESH JAIN chandreshjainjnvu19@gmail.com 

 
 

bahut bahut dhanywaad aapko ki apne bhaut hi sundar tarike se book banaai ... 
i m very thnkful to u from depth of my heart.... really appreciated your wrk ..thnx again md imran sir 

one rqst if u have sfm notes for ca final plz upload in caclubindia and rply the same. 

Shahala PS ishahalaps@gmail.com 

Dear Sir, 
 
I'm CA Final student my attempt is on may 2018. I've found your Notes on Auditing paper recently. I was in a big 
trouble till your notes were noticed. I'm sincerely thankful to you for your great effort and time taken for the 
translation of the sea in to just a cup of tea. 
 
Frankly speaking, I don't have an idea to study theory paper. These type of notes are really helpful to students like 
me. Could you please provide such type of Notes on other theory papers in CA Final if do you have? 
 
... 
Regards, 
 
Shahala.P.S 
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CA Final Student 
 
ANSARI K M aansarikm@gmail.com 

Respected sir, 
                         Assalamu alaikum wr wbr. 
I am a ca final student from kerala. Your audit short notes is superb...very useful.. Thank you so much.. Is there 
any short notes for law available with you...kindly share to me...thanks in advance... 

Samarth Sheth samarthsheth17@gmail.com 

Dear Imran Sir, 

I found your material of audit on CA Club India and your material is very helpful for revision. 

Could you please provide other relevant materials for CA final. It would be very kind of you. 

Thank you again for your audit material and looking forward for your valuable response and tips. 

Regards 
Samarth Sheth 

Kamlesh.Shah@sunpharma.com 

Sir  
 
Thank you  very much. for your support.. 
 
For any other final c. a.  subject ,if you have prepared such notes , please share it. 
 
Regards 
 
Kamlesh Shah 

 
Karan Chawla karanpreet.16@gmail.com 

Hello MD Imran 
 
The book prepared  by you for ca final audit is very helpful and it would be of great help if i could 
get the latest updated book for may 2017 attempt. 
 
The material is great and very concise. 
 
Kindly send an updated copy if available and anyother subject notes you may have 
 
Regards  
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Chapter-1 – Valuation 
  Valuation of goodwill 

1. Average Profit Method 
2. Super Profit Method 
3. Capitalisation Method 
4. Capitalisation of Super Profit Method 
5. Annuity Method 

 
 Valuation of Shares 
1. Income Basis/ Yield basis 

 
a. ECM (Earning Capitalisation Method): 
b. DCM (Dividend Capitalisation Method): 

2. Net assets method 
 
Intrinsic value Per share 
 

 Leverage effect of goodwill 
 Valuation of Business 
 Brand valuation 

Chapter. 2- corporate restructuring  
 I. AMALGAMATION 

- ACCOUNTING FOR AMALGAMATION 
- AMALGAMATION IN THE NATURE OF MERGER 
- AMALGAMATION IN THE NAUTRE OF PURCHASE 
- PURCHASE CONSIDERATION 
- UPDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
- INTER COMPANY HOLDING 
I. INTERNAL RECONSTRUCTION  
II. Buy Back of Share 
III. Demerger 
IV. Sale of division 
V. Acquisition of share  

 
CHAPTER-3: VALUE ADDED STATEMENT 
 I- GROSS VALUE ADDED/NET VALUE ADDED 

- Gross Value Added Statement 
- Distribution sheet 

- Reconciliation Statement 
II- ECONOMIC VALUE ADDED 
III- Market value added 

Chapter -4 Share Based Payment. 
 I. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN 

II. STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHT (SAR) 
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III. ESOP with the cash Alternative 

CH- 5 MUTUAL FUNDS 
 Introduction 

Accounting 
Chapter-6 Human resources accounting 
  
Chapter-7 NBFC (Non-Banking Financing Company) 
 Income recognition 

Classification of advance & Provision 
VALUATION 
Hire purchase & leasing company 
Capital Adequacy Ratio 

Chapter. 8 Holding  
 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

General notes 
Detailed procedure 

 Bonus share calculation 
 Holding pattern and % of holding. 
 Revaluation of assets if any  
 Unrealised profit on stock. 
 Analysis of profit. 
 Cost of control. 
 Minority interest. 
 Consolidated general reserve. 
 Consolidated profit and loss. 

Different Adjustment 
1. Preparation of balance sheet 
2. Revaluation 
3. Analysis of profit  
4. Cost of control 
5. Minority interest 
6. Consolidated profit and loss 
7. Contra item 
8. Rectification of error 
9. Dividend 
10. Unrealised profit 
11. Bonus Shares  
12. Updation of financial statement 

 
DIFFERENT SITUATION 

1. MULTIPLE ACQUISITION 
2. MULTIPLE SUBSIDIARIES 
3. Joint venture 
4. Associate 
5. Intercompany holding 
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6. Disposal of share. 
7. Hire purchase.      

 
Chapter. 9-  Accounting Standards & IndAS 
AS RECALL 
1 accounting policies 

fundamental accounting assumption 
Going concern 
Consistency: 
Accrual: 
SELECTION OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

2 Inventories:  
Valuation: 
Scrap and By-product 
Determination of cost 
Following item should be excluded  
Guidance note on treatment of excise duty 
 

3 Cash flow statement 
Cash flow from operating activity– Direct method/ indirect method. 
Cash flow from investing activity 
Cash flow from financing activity 
 

4  EVENT OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 
 

5 Prior period item 
Change in accounting policies 
 

7 Construction contract 
Method to recognise revenue 
Para 35: Recognise expected loss 
Step 1- Calculate degree of completion: 
Step 2- Revenue to be recognised 
Provision for expected loss 
Para 14: Incentive payment 
 

9 Revenue Recognition 
Sale of goods 
Rendering of Services 
Interest: 
Dividend: 
Royalty: 
Sale and Purchase back transaction- 
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10 Property, Plant & Equipment:  
Cost of Property, Plant & Equipment:  
Cost of Property, Plant & Equipment in case of exchange 
Cost of Self constructed assets 
Improvement 
Disposed off 
Revaluation 
 
Depreciation 
Depreciable assets 
Generally adopted method of depreciation 
Change in method of depreciation 
Change in Expected useful life 
 

11 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTION 
PARA 38 & 39 of AS 11: 
Foreign currency monetary Item 
PARA 13:  
LONG TERM FOREIGN CURRENCY MONTRORY ITEM (LTFCMI) 
PARA-46  
Depreciable Assets: 
Non depreciable assets 
LOAN/ BORROWING 
FOREIGN OPERATION 
 

12 Recognition:  
Income grant, Expenses grant or bailout grant 
Grant for Depreciable assets: 
Grant for non-depreciable assets 
Grant for promoter contribution or for situation in backward area 
 

13 INVESTMENT:  
INVESTMENT 
Cost of investment 
Cost of investment when issued own share to acquire investment 
Cost of investment in case of exchange 
RIGHT SHARE 
VALUATION 
RECLASSIFICATION 
 

14 AMALGAMATION:  
NATURE 
AMALGAMATION IN THE NATURE OF MERGER 
AMALGAMATION IN THE NAUTRE OF PURCHASE 
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Statutory Reserve  
PURCHASE CONSIDERATION 
 

15 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:  
Types of employee benefit: 
SHORT TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 
LEAVE 
LONG TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION 
projected unit credit  
 

16 CAPITALISATION 
RATE 
COMMENCEMENT OF CAPITALISATION 
SUSPENTION OF CAPITALISAITON OF BORRWING COST 
CESSATION OF CAPITALISATION OF BORROWING COST 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS DUE TO BORROWING 
 

17 SEGMENT: 
INDENTIFICATION OF REPORTABLE SEGMENT 
 

18 RELATED PARTY AS PER PARA 3 
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT 
Mnemonics: N3DTV 
 

19 LEASE 
FINANCE LEASE 
JOURNAL ENTRIES 
OPERATING LEASE 
SALE AND LEASE BACK TRANSACTION 
 

20 EARNING PER SHARE  
BASIC EARNING PER SHARE 
WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARE 
Do not weight  
Weight only for following 
Calculation of bonus part and paid part in case of right issue 
Step 1- Calculate Post right fair value 
Step 2- Calculate paid part 
Step 3- Calculate bonus part  
CALCULATION OF EARNING PER SHARE IN CASE OF DIFFERENTIAL DIVIDEND 
RIGHT AND PROPOTIONAL DIVIDEND RIGHT 
DILUTED EARNING PER SHARE 
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21 CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 
22 DEFERRED TAX 

TIMING DIFFERENCE AND PERMANENT DIFFERENCE 
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 
Para 15-  
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 
UNABSORBED DEPRECIATION AND UNABSORBED LOSSES 
Para – 17 
TAX HOLIDAY 
Section 115JB of Income tax act 1961- MINIMUM ALTERNATIVE TAX 
MAT CREDIT 
 

23 ACCOUNTING FOR INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES IN CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 
 

24 DISCONTINUING OPERATION, *Where disposed off means 
REPORTING OF DISCONTINUING OPERATION 
Following event is not regarded as discontinuing operation 
 

25 INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORTING:  
INCOME, EXPENSES AND LOSSES RECOGNITION IN CASE OF INTERIM PERIOD 
GUIDANCE NOTES ON INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR TAX TREATMENT 
 

26 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
ASSETS:  
RECOGNITION 
RESEARCH 
IMPROVEMENT 
DEVELOPMENT  
Mnemonics: TIMR 
 

27 FINANCIAL REPORTING OF INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES. 
28 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS:  

CASH GENERATING UNIT 
Impairment loss 
INDICATOR OF IMPAIRMENT LOSS 
NON-CASH GENERATING UNIT 
Step 1- Bottom up approach 
Step – II Top down approach 
REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSS 
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29 PROVISION 
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
CONTINGENT ASSETS 
 

 DISCLOURE REQUIREMENT OF ALL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AT A ONE 
PLACE 

Indian Accounting Standard and corresponding accounting standard and 
guidance note 
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Difference between IAS and IndAS 
IndAS IAS IndAS 
1 In case of loan liabilities which is 

classified as non-current, if condition 
is breached on the balance sheet 
date such should be classified as 
current liabilities. 

If there is breach of provision with 
respect to long term loan arrangement 
& lender agreed to waive and not to 
recall or demand payment  before the 
approval of financial statement, then 
such will continue to classify as non- 
current liabilities. 

17 In case of operating lease all lease 
rental should be charged to SPL on 
the straight line method. 

In case of operating lease, where 
escalation of lease rentals is in line with 
the expected general inflation so as to 
compensate the lessor for expected 
inflationary cost increases shall not be 
straight lined. 

101 On first time adoption of IAS 
recognise PPE by retrospective 
application of IAS-16 or the same 
should be recorded at fair value. 

Provides addition option to use carrying 
amount. 

28 For applying equity method in the 
preparation of investor financial 
statement uniform accounting 
policies should be used. 

It added the word unless impracticable 
to do so in the paragraph 35. 

28 In case of associate excess of net 
assets over cost of investment 
recognised in SPL. 

Ind AS 103- in capital reserve 

32 Equity conversion option in case of 
convertible bond considered as 
derivative liabilities. Gain or loss 
recognise in SPL 

Equity conversion option in case of 
convertible bond considered as equity 
instruments. 

103 Bargain purchase gain arising on 
business combination to be 
recognised in SPL. 

In equity as capital reserve. 

 

Difference between IndAS & AS. 
INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 
 
Ind AS 1 and AS 1 : DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Explicit Statement of Compliance: 
Current and Non-current Classification: 
Disclosure of Judgments and Assumptions made: 
Classification of Expenses: 
Presentation of Balance Sheet: 
Disclosure of Reclassified of Items: 
Statement of Other Comprehensive Income: 
Classification of Long-term Loan Arrangement: 
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Ind AS 8 and AS 5: PRIOR PERIOD ITEM AND CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING 
POLICIE 
Extraordinary Items: 
Definition of Accounting Policies: 
Accounting for Changes in Accounting Policies: 
Exceptions in Retrospective Accounting of Changes in Accounting Policies: 
Prior Period Items: 
Rectification of Material Prior Period Errors: 
 
Ind AS 10 and AS 4: EVENT OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 
Non Adjusting Events if Material: 
Proposed Dividend: 
Accounting Treatment and Disclosure in case of Inappropriateness of Fundamental 
Accounting Assumption of Going Concern: 
In case of breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement: 
 
Ind AS 34 and AS 25 
Contents of Interim Report: 
Reversal of Impairment Loss: 
Accounting Policies: 
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: 
Change in Accounting Policy: 
 
Ind AS 12 and AS 22 
Approach for creating Deferred Tax: 
Recognition of Current and Deferred Tax: 
Recognition of Current and Deferred Tax for unabsorbed losses and depreciation 
Disclosure of DTA and DTL in Balance Sheet: 
Disclosure Requirements: 
 
Ind AS 2 and AS 2 : VALUATION OF INVENTORIES 
Machinery Spares: 
Inventories Acquired on Deferred Settlement Terms: 
Cost Formulae: 
 
Ind AS 37 and AS 29 
Discounting Provisions: 
Disclosure of Contingent Assets: 
 
Ind AS 38 and AS 26 :INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
Definition of Intangible Assets: 
Revenue Based Amortisation Method: 
Payment Deferred beyond Normal Credit Terms: 
Intangible Assets Acquired in Exchange: 
Intangible Assets acquired Free of Charge or for a Nominal Consideration by way of 
Government Grant: 
Useful Life of an Intangible Asset: 
Valuation Model as Accounting Policy: 
Change in Method of Amortization: 
 
Ind AS 40 and AS 13 : ACCOUNTING FOR INVESTMENT 
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Ind AS 36 and AS 28: IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 
Financial Assets: 
Biological Assets: 
Impairment Testing for an Intangible Asset with an Indefinite Useful Life: 
Reversal of Goodwill: 
Bottom up and Top Down Test: 
 
Ind AS 17 and AS 19 : LEASE 
Land: 
Treatment of Initial Direct Costs: 
Current/Non-current Classification of Lease Liabilities: 
Sale and Leaseback Transaction: 
Recognition of Lease Payments: 
 
Ind AS 105 and AS 24: DISCONTINUING OPERATION 
Scope and Objective: 
Discontinued vs Discontinuing Operations: 
Time Period: 
Initial Disclosure Event: 
Measurement: 
 
Ind AS 24 and AS 18: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 
Definition of Relative: 
State Controlled Enterprise: 
Key Management Personnel: 
Next Most Senior Parent: 
 
Ind AS 108 and AS 17 
Identification of Segments: 
Single Reportable Segment: 
Interest Expense: 
Disclosures: 
 
Ind AS 7, AS 3 :CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
Bank Overdraft Repayable on Demand: 
Treatment of Cash Payments to property dealer who held for sale, as Rent. 
Cash Flows associated with Extraordinary Activities: 
 
Ind AS 20, AS 12 :GOVERNMENT GRANT 
Grant in respect of Non Depreciable Assets: 
Government Grants in the Nature of Promoters Contribution: 
Valuation of Non-monetary Grants given Free or at a Concessional Rate: 
Accounting for Grant Related to Assets including Non-monetary Grant: 
 
Ind AS 21, AS 11 :THE AFFECT OF CHNAGE IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE 
Forward Exchange Contracts and other similar Financial Instruments: 
Exchange Differences arising on Translation of Certain Long-term Monetary Items 
From Foreign Currency to Functional Currency: 
Approach for Translation: 
 
Ind AS 23, AS 16: BORROWING COST  
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Qualifying Asset measured at Fair Value: 
Applicability to Inventories: 
Explanation of Substantial Period of Time: 
Disclosure of Capitalisation Rate: 
 
Ind AS 19, AS 15 :EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Constructive Obligations: 
Definition of Employee:  
Qualified Actuary: 
Recognition of Actuarial Gains and Losses: 
Financial Assumptions: 
Discounting of Post-employment Benefit Obligations: 
 
Ind AS 33 and AS 20 EARNING PER SHARE 
Presentation of Basic and Diluted EPS from Continuing and Discontinued Operations: 
  
Disclosure of EPS with and without Extraordinary Items: 
 
Ind AS 28, AS 23 
Definition of Significant Influence: 
  
Potential Equity Shares: 
  
Equity Method: 
  
Exemption: 
  
Explanation regarding the term ‘Near Future’: 
  
Investment Classified as Held for Sale: 
  
Difference in Reporting Dates: 
  
Accounting Policies: 
  
Share in Losses: 
  
Ind AS 103 and AS 14 
Scope 
Methods for Accounting: 
Assets and Liabilities: 
Amortisation of Goodwill: 
Reverse Acquisitions: 
Bargain Purchase Gain: 
 
Ind AS 111 and AS 21 
Mandatory preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements: 
Control: 
Clarification on more than one Parent of a Subsidiary: 
Difference in Reporting Dates: 
Uniform accounting policies: 
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Presentation of Non-controlling Interest in CFS: 
Exclusion from Consolidation: 
 
Ind AS 110 andas 27 
Types of Joint Arrangement/Joint Venture: 
Equity method: 
Add Difference between AS 9 and IndAS 18 
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Chapter No. 0 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT - SCHEDULE III 

 

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholders' Funds

(a) Share Capital -                         -                          

(b) Reserves & Surplus

(c) Money received against share allotment -                         -                          

-                         -                          

(2) Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Long-term borrowings

(b) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)

(c) Other Long Term Liabilities -                         -                          

(d) Long Term Provisions -                         -                          

(3) Current Liabilities

(a) Short-term borrowings

(b) Trade Payables -                         -                          

(c) Other Current Liabilities -                         -                          

(d) Short Term Provisions -                         -                          

-                         -                          

II. ASSETS

(1) Non Current Assets

(a) Fixed Assets

(i) Tangible assets -                         -                          

(ii) Intangible assets

(iii) Capital work-in-progress

(iv) Intangible assets under developmet

(b) Non Current Investments - Long Term -                         -                          

(c) Deferred Tax Asset -                         

(d) Long Term Loans and Advances -                         -                          

(e) Other Non Current Assets -                         -                          

(2) Current Assets

(a) Current Investments -                         -                          

(b) Inventories -                         -                          

(c) Trade receivable

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents

(e) Short Term Loans and Advances

(f) Other Current Assets -                         -                          

-                         -                          

-                         -                          

XYZ PRIVATE LIMITED

TOTAL (1 TO 3)

TOTAL (1 TO 2)

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March, 2017

PARTICULARS Note. 
No.

 FIGURES AS AT 
31.03.2017

 (Rs.) 

FIGURES AS AT 
31.03.2016

 (Rs.)
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Particulars
Note 
No

As at 31 
March, 2017

As at 31 
March, 2016

Rs. Rs.

(A) REVENUE

  I.  Revenue from operations

  II. Other Income

 Total Revenue 0 0

(B) Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-
progress and Stock-in-Trade
Employee benefit expense

Financial costs

Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses

Total Expenses 0 0

(C) Profit before exceptional and extraordinary 
items and tax 0 0

(D) Exceptional Items -            

(E) Profit before extraordinary items and tax 0 0

(F) Extraordinary Items -            

(G) Profit before tax 0 0

(F)  Tax expense:

 (I) Current tax

 (II) Deferred tax

(H) PROFIT AFTER TAX

(I) Earning per equity share:

       (I) Basic

       (II) Diluted 

Per our annexed report of even date

For 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

NAME MANAGING DIRECTOR            DIRECTOR
PROPRITER                                                 DIN: DIN:

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS  FOR THE PERIOD ENDED  31.03.2017

   For and on behalf of Board of Directors

COMPANY NAME
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1. An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: (a) it is expected to be 
realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the company’s normal operating cycle; (b) it is held primarily 
for the purpose of being traded; (c) it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or (d) 
it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting date. All other assets shall be classified as non-current.  

2. An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash 
equivalents. Where the normal operating cycle cannot be identified, it is assumed to have a duration of 12 months.  

3. A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: (a) it is expected to be 
settled in the company’s normal operating cycle; (b) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded; (c) it is due 
to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or (d) the company does not have an unconditional right 
to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, 
at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its 
classification. 

All other liabilities shall be classified as non-current.  

4. A receivable shall be classified as a ‘trade receivable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods sold 
or services rendered in the normal course of business.  

5. A payable shall be classified as a ‘trade payable’ if it is in respect of the amount due on account of goods 
purchased or services received in the normal course of business. 

6. Trade Receivables  

(i) Aggregate amount of Trade Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the Date they are due 
for payment should be separately stated.  

(ii) Trade receivables shall be sub-classified as: (a) Secured, considered good; (b) Unsecured considered good; (c) 
Doubtful. 

(iii) Allowance for bad and doubtful debts shall be disclosed under the relevant heads separately. (iv) Debts due by 
directors or other officers of the company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person or debts 
due by firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member should be 
separately stated.  

7. Cash and cash equivalents  

(i) Cash and cash equivalents shall be classified as: (a) Balances with banks; (b) Cheques, drafts on hand; (c) Cash on 
hand; (d) Others (specify nature).  

(ii) Earmarked balances with banks (for example, for unpaid dividend) shall be separately stated.  

(iii) Balances with banks to the extent held as margin money or security against the borrowings, guarantees, other 
commitments shall be disclosed separately.  

(iv) Repatriation restrictions, if any, in respect of cash and bank balances shall be separately stated.  

(v) Bank deposits with more than 12 months maturity shall be disclosed separately. 
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As Per IndAS

 

Name of the Company…………………….
Balance Sheet as at ………………………

(Rupees in…………)

Particulars Note No.
Figures as at the
end of current
reporting period

Figures as at the end
of the previous
reporting period

1 2 3 4
(1) ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
(b) Capital work-in-progress
(c) Investment Property
(d) Goodwill
(e) Other Intangible assets
(f) Intangible assets under evelopment
(g) Biological Assets other than bearer plants
(h) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Loans
(iv) Others (to be specified)
(i) Deferred tax assets (net)
(j) Other non-current assets
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments
(ii) Trade receivables
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above
(v) Loans
(vi) Others (to be specified)
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net)
(d) Other current assets

Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital
(b) Other Equity
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables
(iii) Other financial liabilities (other than those
specified in item (b), to be specified)
(b) Provisions
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(d) Other non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Trade payables
(iii) Other financial liabilities (other than those 
(b) Other current liabilities
(c) Provisions
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

Total Equity and Liabilities

PART I –BALANCE SHEET
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Particulars Note No.

Figures for
the current
reporting 
period

Figures for the
previous 
reporting period

I Revenue From Operations
II Other Income
III Total Income (I+II)

EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
Changes in inventories of finished goods,
Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress
Employee benefits expense
Finance costs
Depreciation and amortization expense
Other expenses
Total expenses (IV)
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and
tax (I- IV)

VI Exceptional Items
Profit/(loss) before tax
(V-VI)
Tax expense:
(1) Current tax
(2) Deferred tax
Profit (Loss) for the period from
continuing operations (VII-VIII)

X Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations
XI Tax expense of discontinued operations

Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations
(after tax) (X-XI)

XIII Profit/(loss) for the period (IX+XII)
Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will
not be reclassified to profit or loss
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to
profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will
be reclassified to profit or loss
Total Comprehensive Income for the
period (XIII+XIV)(Comprising Profit
(Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income
for the period)
Earnings per equity share (for continuing
operation):
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

Earnings per equity share (for discontinued

operation):
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted
Earnings per equity share(for discontinued
& continuing operations)
(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

IV

V

VII

VIII

IX

XII

XIV

XVI

(Rupees in…………)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended ………………………
Name of the Company…………………….

PART II – STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

XVII

XVIII

XV
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Name of the Company…………………….
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended ……………………

A. Equity Share Capital

Balance at the beginning of the
reporting period

Changes in equity
share capital
during the year

Balance at the 
end of the
reporting 
period

B. Other Equity

Capital 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 
Reserve

Other 
Reserves 
(specify 
nature)

Retained 
Earnings

Balance at the beginning of the
reporting period
Changes in accounting policy or
prior period errors

Restated balance at the
beginning of the reporting period

Total Comprehensive Income for
the year
Dividends
Transfer to retained earnings
Any other change (to be
specified)
Balance at the end of the
reporting period

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Debt 
instruments 
through Other
Comprehensiv
e Income

Equity  
Instruments 

through 
Other 

Comprehe
nsive 

Income

Effective 
portion of 

Cash 
Flow 

Hedges

Revaluation 
Surplus

Share application
money pending
allotment

Equity 
component of
compound 
financial 
instruments

Reserves and Surplus
Exchange 
differences 

on  
translating 

the 
financial 

statements 

Other items of 
Other 

Comprehensive
  Income 

(specify nature)

Money 
received 
against 
share 

warrants

Total

(Rupees in………………)
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CH-1 VALUATION 

Following topic is covered in this Chapter. 
 Valuation of goodwill 
 Valuation of Shares 
 Leverage effect of goodwill 
 Valuation of Business 
 Brand valuation 

 

 Valuation of goodwill 
 

Meaning 
Goodwill means sum of future maintainable operating profit up to defined period arising due to 
past effort. 
Following are the method of valuation of goodwill. 

1. Average Profit Method. 
 
Future Maintainable Profit  x  No. of Year of Purchase. 

 
2. Super Profit Method 

 
(Future Maintainable Profit – Normal Profit) x No. of year of purchase 

 
Normal Profit = Average Capital Employed x Normal Rate of Return 

 
3. Capitalisation Method 

 
 

𝐹𝑢𝑡𝑢𝑟𝑒 𝑀𝑎𝑖𝑛𝑡𝑎𝑖𝑛𝑎𝑏𝑙𝑒 𝑃𝑟𝑜𝑓𝑖𝑡

𝑁𝑜𝑟𝑚𝑎𝑙 𝑅𝑎𝑡𝑒 𝑜𝑓 𝑅𝑒𝑡𝑢𝑟𝑛
−  𝐶𝑙𝑜𝑠𝑖𝑛𝑔 𝐶𝑎𝑝𝑖𝑡𝑎𝑙 𝐸𝑚𝑝𝑙𝑜𝑦𝑒𝑑 

 

4. Capitalisation of Super Profit Method 
 

𝐹𝑢𝑡𝑢𝑟𝑒 𝑀𝑎𝑖𝑛𝑡𝑎𝑖𝑛𝑎𝑏𝑙𝑒 𝑃𝑟𝑜𝑓𝑖𝑡

𝑁𝑜𝑟𝑚𝑎𝑙 𝑅𝑎𝑡𝑒 𝑜𝑓 𝑅𝑒𝑡𝑢𝑟𝑛
−  𝐴𝑣𝑒𝑟𝑎𝑔𝑒 𝐶𝑎𝑝𝑖𝑡𝑎𝑙 𝑒𝑚𝑝𝑙𝑜𝑦𝑒𝑑 

5. Annuity Method 

Super Profit  x Annuity Factor. 

Annuity factor means sum of discounting factor. 

For calculation of goodwill following steps is followed: 

a. Future Maintainable Profit. 
b. Closing Capital Employed / Average capital employed. 
c. Value of Goodwill is calculated using any of the above method. 
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A. Future Maintainable Profit 
Future maintainable profit is calculated using Projected Profit Method or Past 
Profit Method. 
i. Projected Profit Method. 

Under Projected Profit Method profit are not projected rather, income or expenses 
are estimated, Projected profit would be as follows: 
Projected Sale XXXX 
Less : Projected Expenses XXXX 
Projected Profit XXXX 

 
ii. Past Profit Method: Here we find out regular business profit from business 

operation by deducting income not related to business and adding expenses not 
related to business operation. 
 

Particular Year 
 1st 2nd 3rd 
Profit after tax xxx xxx xxx 
Add: Tax Expenses @ Old I.Tax 
Rate 

xxx xxx xxx 

Profit Before Tax xxx xxx xxx 
Add: Goodwill Amortisation xxx xxx xxx 
Less: Non-Operating Income xxx xxx xxx 
Add/Less: Rectification of Error xxx xxx xxx 
Add/Less: Abnormal Item xxx xxx xxx 
Add/Less: Effect of Change in Policy xxx xxx xxx 
Add/Less: Effect of change or 
Revaluation of Current Assets / 
Current Liabilities 

xxx xxx xxx 

Less: Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets 
& Investment 

xxx xxx xxx 

Add: Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets & 
Investment 

xxx Xxx xxx 

Adjusted Profit xxx Xxx xxx 
 

 

Average Adjusted Profit xxxx 
Add/Less: Future Income and Expenses  xxxx 
Future Maintainable Profit Before Tax Xxxx 
Less: Tax Expected @ New I.Tax Rate Xxxx 
Future Maintainable Profit xxxx 
 

1. Profit resulting from revaluation of fixed assets and investment will be ignored in FMP. 
2. Effect of Change in current assets and current liabilities should be considered in FMP. 
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3. Abnormal item should be adjusted to make profit uniform, if in any year abnormal item data 
of which is missing, ignored such year in calculation. 

4. Whenever there is change or revaluation of stock, change in value of closing stock 
correspondingly affect the value of opening stock of next year, so whatever effect has been 
give in current year as result of change of closing stock corresponding reverse effect in next 
year profit. 

5. However when both information balance sheet and profit information given of more than 2 
year then Average super profit is calculated, by deducting normal profit of every year from 
future maintainable profit of respective year, and then goodwill is derived by multiplying 
average super profit from number of year of purchase. Means in such a case Average 
Adjusted Profit and average capital employed is not calculated rather Average super profit 
is calculated. But average capital employed is derived for every year by averaging last year 
capital employed and current year capital, for every year. 

6. If question direct that future maintainable profit expected be 10% higher, then final future 
maintainable profit arrived (Before tax) increased with 10%. If question direct to make 
provision 10% on profit after tax (PAT) then deduct such provision from final future 
maintainable profit (before tax) arrived. Then on tax levied with new rate on total net future 
maintainable profit. 
 
 
 

B. Capital Employed. 

Here Capital employed means shareholder funds otherwise capital employed means long term 
fund. 

Sundries Assets xxxx 
Less: Sundries Liabilities xxxx 
Closing Capital employed Xxxx 

 

Average Capital employed = (Opening capital + Closing capital) /2 

Or 

Average Capital employed= Closing capital employed – (1/2x Rectified Pat) 

 

Note:  

 

1. Sundries Assets doesn’t include Deferred revenue expenditure, Goodwill (other than 
purchased goodwill), and Non-Operating investment. 

2. Sundries Liabilities doesn’t include Proposed dividend, Preference Share capital & 
Liabilities in respect of non- trade investment. It includes provision for taxation. 

3. However if NRR is given to calculate goodwill is not of company rather it is only of equity 
shareholder then Net assets should be calculated for equity shareholder that is after 
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deducting preference share and preference dividend from net assets and future 
maintainable profit respectively. 

4. Goodwill cannot be negative, if answer is in negative then value of goodwill is NIL. 
5. In weighted average more weighted should be given to Latest period. 
6. Trade investment means investment constituting principle revenue generating investment, 

that is required in operation of business. Non- trade investment means other than trade 
investment, interest on non-trade investment is not from business operation, so its affect is 
eliminated at arriving at FMP. If question is silence assume it is non-operating investment. 

7. While deriving profit from balance sheet, it is sum of change in SPL and reserve and 
surplus and also total dividend declared and shown in balance sheet as provision. 

8. In case exchange difference for borrowing consider both difference due to reporting and 
due to settlement, effect of exchange difference on balance in balance sheet and on 
interest payment in future maintainable profit. 
 

9. Average or Closing Capital Employed? 
 

Average capital employed is calculated only in case of super profit method &Capitalisation 
of Super Profit Method, Only if Average Maintainable Profit have been calculated using 
Average Profit method. In all other case use Closing Capital employed. 

 Valuation of Shares 
3. Income Basis / yield basis 

c. ECM (Earning Capitalisation Method): 
𝐸𝑎𝑟𝑛𝑖𝑛𝑔 𝑅𝑎𝑡𝑒

𝑁𝑜𝑟𝑚𝑎𝑙 𝑅𝑎𝑡𝑒 𝑜𝑓 𝑅𝑒𝑡𝑢𝑟𝑛
× 𝑃𝑎𝑖𝑑 𝑢𝑝 𝑉𝑎𝑙𝑢𝑒 𝑃𝑒𝑟 𝑆ℎ𝑎𝑟𝑒 

 
d. DCM (Dividend Capitalisation Method): 

𝐷𝑖𝑣𝑖𝑑𝑒𝑛𝑑 𝑅𝑎𝑡𝑒

𝑁𝑜𝑟𝑚𝑎𝑙 𝑅𝑎𝑡𝑒
× 𝑃𝑎𝑖𝑑 𝑢𝑝 𝑣𝑎𝑙𝑢𝑒 𝑃𝑒𝑟 𝑆ℎ𝑎𝑟𝑒 

       Note: 

i. 𝐸𝑎𝑟𝑛𝑖𝑛𝑔 𝑅𝑎𝑡𝑒 =
    

  
 

 

ii. 𝐷𝑖𝑣𝑖𝑑𝑒𝑛𝑑 𝑅𝑎𝑡𝑒 =
  

    
 

 
iii. Normal rate would be given in question or average dividend rate. 

 
If in question rate of return on equity share for this type of industry is 15%, risk premium 
for dividends is generally assumed at 2% then NRR = 17% 

 

4. Net assets method 
Intrinsic value Per share 
 
Net Assets for equity Share holder / No. of share 
 
Net Assets for equity Share holder 
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Sundries Assets (*) xxxx 
Less: Sundries Liabilities(Including Proposed dividend & 
PSC) 

xxxx 

Net Assets for equity Shareholder. Xxxx 
Add: Notional Call if share are partly paid up 
         Calls in arrear and uncalled capital 

Xxxx 

Total Net assets for equity shareholder  (A) Xxxx 
No. of share (B) Xxxx 
Intrinsic value of share ex dividend  (A)/(B) Xxxx 
Add: dividend per share Xxxx 
Less: Called up amount Xxxx 
Intrinsic value cum dividend xxxxx 
(*) Including Goodwill & Non-trade Investment It will be considered after revaluation, 
rectification and effect of changes. 
Sundries assets include prepaid expenses, but doesn’t include fictitious assets. 
Unrealised profit eliminated while calculatingintrinsic value. 

 Leverage effect of goodwill 
 

Calculated Goodwill considering Debt as Debt xxxx 
Less: Calculated Goodwill considering Debt  as equity xxxx 
Leverage effect of goodwill. Xxxx 
 

 Valuation of Business 
 

Maximum amount that Acquiring can pay to target company. 
 
Present value of synergy as resulting from merger 

(PV of Value AB-PV of Value A) 
Add: Any additional resulting synergy as a result of 
merger 

A xxxx 

Add: 
Net Realisation from sale of fixed assets other than of 
regular use 
Scrap value of unused assets 
Realisable value of inventories 
Less: 
Liabilities to be paid 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
(B) 

 
XXX 
 
XXX 
XXX 
xxx 
 
XXX 
XXX 

Value of business (A+B) Xxxx 
 
 
Difference in valuation had been there no merger: 

Maximum amount that Acquiring can pay to target company XXX 

Less : Stand alone value of target company XXX 

Difference in valuation had been there no merger XXXX 
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To derive capitalisation rate ICAI uses 1/PE ratio. 
 
 

 Brand valuation 
Super Profit Method 
 
Value of Brand = (Total Profit with brand) – (Total Profit without brand) x Annuity Factor 
 
 
Potential Earning Method 
 
Value of Brand = Profit earned due to brand / Capitalisation Rate 
 
Actual Pat Earned  
Less: Expected Profit Without Brand  
Profit earned due to Brand  
 

Refer Practical question.  
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Chapter-2 CORPORATE RESTRUCTURING 

Following topic is covered 

1. Amalgamation 
2. Reconstruction 
3. Buy back of Share 
4. Sale of division 

 
- AMALGAMATION 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-14 

ACCOUNTING FOR AMALGAMATION 

AMALGAMATION: Amalgamation means external reconstruction. When two or more 
company merge to form a new company, known as amalgamation. 

NATURE: An amalgamation may be either in the nature of merger or nature of purchase. 
Accounting treatment in both the cases is as follows. 

PURCHASE CONSIDERATION 

It is the amount payable by amalgamated company to equity and preference shareholder of 
amalgamating company in any form equity share, preference share, cash, debenture, etc. 
to external shareholder of the transferor company. 

Calculation of purchase consideration 

Net Assets Method: 

Sundries Assets xxxx 
Less: Sundries Liabilities* xxxx 
Net Assets  Xxxx 

*, including debenture of transferor company owned by acquiring company 

Net payment Method: Payment to equity & Preference share in the form of equity, 
preference, cash, debenture, etc, to external shareholder of the transferor company. 
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Intrinsic value method: Intrinsic value of both the company is used as swap ratio. Intrinsic 
value of both the company is calculated based on given current value of assets, liabilities 
and value of goodwill. 

Sundries Assets Xxxx 
Less: Sundries Liabilities Xxxx 
Closing Capital employed Xxxx 

 

Other point- 

 PC to be valued at agreed value, market value or face value. 

AMALGAMATION IN THE NATURE OF MERGER 

All assets and liabilities including reserve of amalgamating company incorporated at book 
value. The difference between the purchase consideration (including additional 
consideration in the form of cash or other assets) and the amount of Share capital of 
Transferor Company should be adjusted in RESERVE. 

Revised value of assets & liabilities, value of goodwill considered only for calculation of 
intrinsic value/ purchase consideration. Revised value of assets and liabilities not 
incorporated in balance sheet unless specifically direct to incorporate. 

AMALGAMATION IN THE NAUTRE OF PURCHASE 

Only assets and liabilities of amalgamating company incorporated at taken over value. The 
difference between NET ASSETS TAKEN OVER and PURCHASE CONSIDERATION is result in 
either goodwill or capital reserve. Excess of net assets taken over, over purchase 
consideration is CAPITAL RESERVE. Excess of purchase consideration over net assets taken 
over is GOODWILL. 

Value of goodwill determined for taken over of amalgamating company considered for 
intrinsic value purpose will not be included in net assets taken over. 

Statutory Reserve incorporated with corresponding amalgamation adjustment accounts. 

UPDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

There may be a circumstance where given financial statement of different date from date 
of amalgamation in such case financial statement updated up to date of amalgamation. If 
business is carried on during such period then it mainly effects to SPL & CASH. 
 
CASH Statement of profit and loss 
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Opening figure 
Add: 
Cash profit (profit + depreciation) 
Increase in liabilities 
Decrease in assets 
Less: 
Increase in assets 
Decrease in liabilities 
Dividend including DDT 

 Opening figure 
Add: 
Net profit 
Less: 
Dividend including DDT 

 

Closing cash balance  Closing SPL   
Note – Fixed assets will be reduced by the amount of depreciation, if there is any other 
changes such also should be considered. 
 
INTER COMPANY HOLDING 
TWO GOLDEN RULL 

1. New company will never take over investment hold by old company in his share 
because it is prohibited to have investment in own share. Exclude it while calculating 
purchase consideration as well as dischargeable purchase consideration. 
 
PC=[ (Swap ratio * Total number of share of transferor company)- share of transferee 
com. held by transferor com]* issue price 
 

2. If new company has held investment in transferor company then New Company will 
never pays PC to itself. Exclude it only while calculating dischargeable purchase 
consideration. 
 
PC= [ (Swap ratio*{Total number of share of transferor company- number of share 
owned by transferee company})- share of transferee com. held by transferor com]* 
issue price. 
 

3. Calculation of goodwill or capital reserve when existing co. Take over a old co.  
 
Dischargeable purchase consideration 
Add: Book value of investment lost 

Xxxxxxx 
Xxxxxxx 

This balance is to be considered for calculating goodwill or capital 
reserve.  Compare this balance with net assets taken over in case 
amalgamation in the nature of purchase & with share capital of 
amalgamating company if amalgamation in the nature of merger. 

Xxxxxxx 
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4. On absorption cancel intercompany holding by contra and difference transfer to 
capital reserve. Intercompany holding may be in equity share, Debenture, preference 
share. 

5. While calculating intrinsic value in case of intercompany holding equation is used. If 
share are partly paid then add notional call in net assets taken over to derive intrinsic 
value. And after intrinsic value derived deduct such notional call from intrinsic value 
arrived, to get actual intrinsic value. 

Other notes 

1. If there is any revaluation of amalgamated co. Assets then same should be done with corresponding 
revaluation reserve. 

2. Whether question asked is of amalgamation in the nature of merger or purchase. 
In the nature of merger In the nature of purchase 
Draft the balance sheet of A Ltd. After 
absorption of B Ltd. 

 

3. When question direct discharge of 10% of debenture by issued such number of its 15% debenture 
so as to maintain same amount of interest. 
Calculate debenture to be issued by dividing current interest (old rate) by new interest rate. 
If question direct increase their income by 20% then, original interest increased by 20% and divide 
total by new rate. 

4. If in question, number of shares to be issued to equity shareholders of amalgamating company will 
be based on the 80% of market price, then, for calculation of number of share to be issued and at a 
price to be issued market price of amalgamated company will be 80%. 

5. Pre-incorporation expenses deducted from SPL in the year in which it is incurred as per AS and 
corresponding deduction from cash balance. 

6. If subscriber to memorandum subscribe share and paid in cash then increase in share capital with 
corresponding increase in cash balance. 

 

INTERNAL RECONSTRUCTION 

Journal entries 
For Reduction in Liabilities 
Liabilities A/c                                           Dr. 
     To, Capital Reconstruction A/c 

For Increase in Liabilities 
Capital reconstruction A/c          
Dr. 
          To, Liabilities A/c 

For Reduction in Assets 
Capital Reconstruction A/c                 Dr. 
      To, Assets 

For, Increase in Assets 
Assets A/c                                                     
Dr. 
      To, Capital Reconstruction 

For Unrecorded Liabilities being settled For Unrecorded Assets being 
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Capital reconstruction A/c  Dr. 
      To, Bank 

realised   Bank A/c                                                       
Dr. 
      To, Capital Reconstruction 

Reduction in Face value & paid up value 
of share 
Share Capital Account                        Dr. 
       To, Capital Reconstruction  
       To, Share Capital (New Value) 

Reduction in Paid up Value only 
Share Capital Account                              
Dr. 
    To, Capital Reconstruction 

On Subdivision or Consolidation of Share 
Equity Share capital A/c                          Dr. 
        To, Equity Share Capital A/c 

On Payment of Reconstruction 
Expenses 
Capital Reconstruction A/c                 
Dr. 
Bank A/c 

Now, ultimately utilise Balance of reconstruction to write off following item 
 
Capital Reconstruction A/c  Dr. 
   To, Preliminary Expenses 
   To, Debit balance of Profit & Loss. 
   To, Goodwill. 
   To, Underwriting Commission 
   To, Discount on Issue of Share 
   To, etc. 
Balance to Capital reconstruction a/c transferred to Capital reserve A/c 
Existing capital reserve, Security Premium, General reserve, etc can be utilise to 
Write of  losses in case of deficiency in balance. 
General instruction 

1. Any profit/ resulting from sale of investment, issue of debenture, etc on 
reconstruction will form part of reconstruction account. 

 
 

- Buy Back of Share 
Buy back can be made to the extent of lower of following 
1. 25% of Number of share. 
2. 25% of (Shareholder fund/ Buy Back Price). 
3. Post buy back debt equity ratio should not exceed 2:1 

 
𝐷𝑒𝑏𝑡

𝐸𝑆𝐹 𝑏𝑒𝑓𝑜𝑟𝑒 𝐵𝑢𝑦 𝐵𝑎𝑐𝑘 − (𝑥 × 𝐵𝑢𝑦 𝐵𝑎𝑐𝑘 𝑃𝑟𝑖𝑐𝑒 ) − (𝑥 × 𝐹𝑎𝑐𝑒 𝑉𝑎𝑙𝑢𝑒 𝑓𝑜𝑟 𝐶𝑅𝑅)
=

2

1
 

X is maximum number of share that can be buy back. 

Journal entries 
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Equity Share Capital A/c Dr. 
Loss on Buy Back of share. Dr. 
  To, Equity shareholder 
(Being Share Capital payable to Equity shareholder) 
Equity Share holder A/c      Dr. 
  To, Bank A/c 
( Being amount paid to equity shareholder) 
Free reserve  A/c                     Dr. 
       To, Capital Redemption Reserve  
(CRR created for face value of share)  
Capital Reserve A/c               Dr, 
Free Reserve A/c                   Dr, 
    To, Loss on Buy Back of share 
(Being amount written off) 
 

- Demerger 

Demerged company Resulting company 
Accumulated Depreciation A/c   Dr. 
Liabilities Account   Dr. 
Profit / loss on Demerger (b.f) 
           To, Assets A/c 
(Being Assets liabilities of division 
transferred) 

Assets A/c   Dr. 
Goodwill/ Capital Reserve (b.f)  
     To, Liabilities A/c 
    To, Member of demerged company. 
(Being Assets/ liabilities is being taken) 

 Member of demerged company a/c     Dr. 
          To, equity share capital A/c 
          To, Security premium reserve a/c 
(Being PC settled.) 

Profit on Demerger A/C 
   To, SPL / Reserve & Surplus 
Or  
SPL / Reserve & Surplus 
     To, Loss on Demerger 
(being profit or loss on demerger 
transferred to SPL account) 

For resulting Co. There will never any profit 
or loss any balance of goodwill or capital 
reserve will be disclosed in balance sheet. 

Calculation of effect of demerger on wealth of shareholder 
1. Calculate Net Assets Value / Intrinsic value of wealth per equity share just before 

demerger. 
2. Calculate Net Assets Value / Intrinsic value of wealth per equity share after 

demerger. (Demerged + Resulting Co.) 
3. Difference in wealth is called effect of demerger on wealth of shareholder. 
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NET ASSETS VALUE-     

.   
 

 

- Sale of division 

Seller Buyer 
Accumulated Depreciation A/c   Dr. 
Liabilities Account   Dr. 
Buyer A/c         Dr. 
Loss or Profit on Sale (b.f) 
           To, Assets A/c 
(Being division sold) 

Assets A/c   Dr. 
Goodwill/ Capital Reserve (b.f)  
     To, Liabilities A/c 
    To Seller  A/c 
(Being division Purchased) 

Bank A/c     Dr. 
     To, Buyer A/c 
(Being Amount received) 

Seller A/c   Dr. 
  To, Bank  
(Being amount paid) 

Profit on sale A/C 
   To, SPL 
Or  
SPL 
     To, Loss on sale 
(being profit or loss on sale transferred to 
SPL account) 

On purchase there will never any profit or 
loss any balance of goodwill or capital 
reserve will be disclosed in balance sheet. 

- Acquisition of share 

It means purchase of share to be kept as investment. This investment can be purchased 
for cash or settlement in own share or debenture. Whenever such share are purchased 
entry would be: 

Investment A/c Dr. 
 To, cash 
 To, E share capital 
 To, Security premium reserve 
(Being investment purchased.)  



41 
 

By, CA MD IMRAN (Chartered Accountant, M.com, B.com(H) ), M -9534019752, E- freebookmdimran@gmail.com      INDIA 

CHAPTER-3: VALUE ADDED STATEMENT 

I-  GROSS VALUE ADDED/NET VALUE ADDED 

The VA statement is a financial statement which shows how much value (wealth) has been 
created by an enterprise through utilization of its capacity, capital, manpower and other resources 
and allocated to the following stakeholders: 
Employee – for wages, salaries and related expenses; 
Director- Director Remuneration.  
Provider of long term finance – for interest on loans   
Shareholder -   for dividends on share capital. 
Government – for corporation tax. 
Entity – for retained profits. 

Gross Value Added Statement 
Revenue from operation XXXXX 
Other Income – Direct XXXXX 
(A) Total revenue XXXXX 
Cost of Bought in material and services  

Raw material consumed & Cost of production EXCEPT Labour cost. XXXXX 
Administration Expenses EXCEPT employee and director remuneration XXXXX 
Finance cost EXCEPT interest on long term finance XXXXX 
Selling and distribution cost EXCEPT salary cost XXXXX 
Government tax related to sales only which is collected in sale (Excise duty, Sales 
tax, Vat, etc assumed to be collected on sale) Except - other local tax, other tax 
directly paid to government Which is not collected in sale. 

XXXXX 

Depreciation only if NVA is to be calculated XXXXX 
(B)  Cost of bought in material and services XXXXX 
Gross value added by manufacturing and trading activity (A) –(B) XXXXX 
Add: 
Dividend and interest 
Other miscellaneous income 

 
XXXXX 
XXXXX 

Total value added XXXXX 
 

Distribution sheet 

Particular Amount Percentage(%) 
Employee XXXXX  
Director XXXXX  
Provider of long term finance XXXXX  
Shareholder XXXXX  
Government  XXXXX  
Employee XXXXX  
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Total XXXXX  
 

Reconciliation Statement 

Simply speaking, Whatever item before PBT not deducted now Deduct from GVA to arrive 
at PBT. 

GVA XXXXX 
Less: Employee- wages, salaries and related expenses XXXXX 
Less: Director- Director Remuneration XXXXX 
Less: Provider of Long term finance- interest on loans   XXXXX 
Less: Depreciation XXXXX 
PBT XXXXX 
 There is one other index model to calculate in such case take benchmark to least as 
target index percentage. 

II- ECONOMIC VALUE ADDED 

 

a. ICAI Method 
NOPAT (Post tax EBIT) XXXX

X 
Less: Cost of operating capital employed (Operating 
capital x Weighted average cost of capital) 

XXXX
X 

EVA XXXX
X 

 
b. Other alternative 

 
EVA= (ROOC-WACOC) x OC 

 

ROOC (Return on operating Capital) 

= NOPAT/Operating Capital 

NOPAT (Net Operating Profit After Tax) : it is post tax EBIT (Earning Before Interest & 
Tax) 

Operating Capital 
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Equity Share Capital XXXX 
Preference Share Capital XXXX 
Reserve and Surplus XXXX 
Debt XXXX 
Total Capital XXXX 
Less: Non Operating Investment  XXXX 
Operating Capital XXXX 
 

WACOC (Weighted Average Cost of Capital) 

It is sum weighted average of rate of Post tax cost of Debt, Cost of Preference Share & 
Cost of equity. 

III- Market value added – it is sum of the value of share & debenture beyond its book 
value. 
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Chapter -4 Share Based Payment. 

I. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION PLAN 
Journal entries 
Employee Compensation A/c Dr. 
    To, Employee Stock Option O/S A/c 
(Being expenses option recognised) 

This entry should be made at end of 
financial year or on the date of vesting 
whichever is earlier. 

Statement of Profit and Loss A/c Dr. 
   To, Employee Compensation A/c 
(Being Employee Compensation 
transferred to SPL) 

This entry should be made only at the 
end of financial year. 

Bank A/c                                 Dr. 
Employee Stock Option O/S A/c Dr. 
     To, Equity Share Capital A/c. 
     To, Security Premium A/c 

Entry for share allotted under employee 
stock option plan. Utilise proportionate 
balance of Employee Stock OptionO/S 
A/c for number of share allotted under 
employee stock option plan. 

Employee Stock Option O/S A/c     Dr. 
     To, General reserve or SPL 
(Being ESOP cancelled Proportionately 
for expired number of share. 

Employee Stock OptionO/S A/c. which is 
not availed and lapsed on exercise date 
is to be cancelled. 

Bank A/c                                 Dr. 
Employee compensation A/c Dr. 
     To, Equity Share Capital A/c. 
     To, Security Premium A/c 

If share is grated to employee on ESOP 
immediately after announcement, there 
is not vesting period in such expenses 
for actual number of option exercise 
should be recognised immediately. No 
any provision. 

 

Calculation of Expenses 
 

𝑵𝒐. 𝒐𝒇 𝒐𝒑𝒕𝒊𝒐𝒏 × 𝑰𝑽 𝒐𝒓 𝑭𝑽 × 𝑬𝒙𝒑𝒊𝒓𝒆𝒅 𝑷𝒆𝒓𝒊𝒐𝒅

𝑽𝒆𝒔𝒕𝒊𝒏𝒈 𝑷𝒆𝒓𝒊𝒐𝒅
 −   𝑬𝒙𝒑𝒆𝒏𝒔𝒆𝒔 𝒓𝒆𝒄𝒐𝒈𝒏𝒊𝒔𝒆𝒅 𝒊𝒏 𝒆𝒂𝒓𝒍𝒊𝒆𝒓 𝒚𝒆𝒂𝒓 

 
While calculating option expenses consider number of employee expected to be 
left, Expectation of year end should be consider. Some time both is given Actual 
number of employee left and expected to be left in % Percentage form for every 
year, in such case consider expectation for every year and all actual number of 
employee left for Last year. 
Some time both is given Actual number of employee left and expected to be left in % form, in 
such case consider actual number of employee left for current year and expectation for next 
year & onwards. 
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To recognise expenses first priorities is Fair Value, if it is not given then take 
Intrinsic value (Difference between MP& EP). 
 

II. STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHT (SAR) 
Stock Appreciation Rights (SAR) entitle the employees to claim cash payment to 
the extent of excess of market price of underlying shares on exercise date over 
the exercise price. It is same as ESOP except we prepare PROVISION FOR STOCK 
OPTION instead of Employee Stock Option O/S A/c and ultimately cash payment is 
made for excess of market price of underlying shares on exercise date over the 
exercise price.The difference between cash settled and balance in provision for 
stock option account is provided from profit and loss a/c. It is not exercised if 
market price is less than the exercise price. 

 

III. ESOP with the cash Alternative 
Under this Employee has give option to take cash alternative instead of share at 
vesting date. In such ESOP will be assumed Excess of obligation over cash 
liabilities. Initially Option expenses recognised as follows: 
Share Obligation Total Number of share x Fair 

Value 
 

Less: Cash 
Obligation 

 Cash Obligation Number of share 
x MP 

Revalue each year 

ESOP Balance is ESOP(Equity 
Component) 

Recognise in SLM over 
year 
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CH- 6  

MUTUAL FUNDS  

Introduction 

It is financial institution as trust that pool the money of number of investor to invest in 
portfolio of securities such as share, debenture or other securities, & to generate higher 
return from this investment and income earned through this investment and capital 
appreciation realised is passed back to unit holder. 

Accounting 

1. It shall mark to market all its investment made. 
2. Unrealised gain arising out of appreciation on investment cannot be distributed. 
3. Income should be recognised on accrual basis, So if Purchase investment cum-

interest then interest portion cannot be treated as cost of purchase rather must be 
debited to interest recoverable account. If sale of investment cum interest then 
interest portion must not be treated as sale value rather it must be credited to 
interest recoverable account. On sale of investment, cost of acquisition should be 
derived by multiplying average cost of investment purchased (exclusive of such 
interest) with number of unit sold. 

4. In question if say Distribution certain percentage of realised earning then Realised 
earning means sum of capital gain and dividend actually receipt, dividend accrued 
should not be consider. 

5. If question direct management expenses cannot exceed certain % of average fund 
invested during the year then it cannot exceed. Excess payment will not be allowed. 

6. Dividend equalisation reserve 
Logically new unit holder not entitle to any share in income of MF Scheme earned by 
the investment made by unit holder exist before new unit holder bought the unit, but 
mutual fund while distribution allocate the same amount to all unit holder, So to 
compensate for such an equalisation payment is recovered on sale of new unit and 
paid on repurchase of its unit. It is calculated as follows: 
 

Dividend equalisation reserve =            

       
 x New 

unit sold 
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7. Calculation of Net Assets Value 

Market value of portfolio XXXX 
Cash balance at year end XXXX 
Other Receivable / Assets XXXX 
Less: Other Payable / Liabilities XXXX 
NET ASSETS VALUE XXXX 
Number of unit XXXX 
Net Assets Value per unit (NAV/Number of unit) XXXX 
 

Journal entry 

  

Journal entry Narration 
Bank A/c                           Dr. 
    To, unit capital 

Being amount received on sale of unit. 

Investment A/c                Dr. 
   To, Bank 

Being investment purchased. 

Bank A/c                           Dr. 
   To, interest on investment 

Being income received on investment made. 

Revenue A/c                   Dr. 
    To, investment account 

Being investment revalue at year end, this 
entry is made for reduction in the value of 
investment 

Investment A/c                  Dr. 
   To, Unrealised Appreciation Reserve 

Being investment revalue at year end, this 
entry is made for increase in the value of 
investment 

Unrealised Appreciation Reserve       Dr. 
       To, Investment A/c               

Unrealised Appreciation Reserve would be 
cancelled at the beginning of next year. 

Bank A/c                Dr. 
Revenue A/c         (b.f) 
    To, investment A/c 

For sale of investment 

Bank A/c                Dr. 
   To, Unit Capital 
   To, Dividend equalisation reserve 
   To, Unit premium 

Being unit sold 
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PRACTICAL QUESTION 

1. Income should be recognised on accrual basis, So if Purchase investment cum-
interest then interest portion cannot be treated as cost of purchase rather must be 
debited to interest recoverable account. If sale of investment cum interest then 
interest portion must not be treated as sale value rather it must be credited to 
interest recoverable account. On sale of investment, cost of acquisition should be 
derived by multiplying average cost of investment purchased (exclusive of such 
interest) with number of unit sold. 
 

Question 1 
A fund purchased 10,000 debentures of a company on June 1, 2012 for ₹ 10.7 lakh and 
further5,000 debentures on November 1, 2012 for ₹ 5.45 lakh. The debentures carry fixed 
annualcoupon of 12%, payable on every 31 March and 30 September. On February 28, 2013 
thefund sold 6,000 of these debentures for ₹ 6.78 lakh. Nominal value per debenture is ₹ 
100.Show Investment in Debentures A/c in books of the fund. 
Solution 

 

 
2. Dividend equalisation reserve 

Logically new unit holder not entitle to any share in income of MF Scheme earned by 
the investment made by unit holder exist before new unit holder bought the unit, but 
mutual fund while distribution allocate the same amount to all unit holder, So to 
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compensate for such an equalisation payment is recovered on sale of new unit. It is 
calculated as follows: 
 

Dividend equalisation reserve =            

       
 x New 

unit sold 

Question 2 
On 1.4.2011, a mutual fund scheme had 18 lakh units of face value of₹ 10 each was 
outstanding. The scheme earned₹ 162 lakhs in 2011-12, out of which ₹ 90 lakhs was 
earnedin the first half of the year. On 30.9.2011, 2 lakh unit were sold at a “NAV” of 
₹70.Pass Journal entries for sale of units and distribution of dividend at the end of 2011-12. 
Answer 
 
Allocation of earning to new and old unit holder 
Old unit holder- 18 Lakh Old and New unit holder-20 lakh 
90 lakh 162-90= 72 lakh 
 
Dividend equalisation reserve =            

       
 x New unit 

sold 

=
  

 
 

= 10 Lakh 
Journal entry 
Date Particular Dr. Cr. 
30.9.2011 Bank A/c Dr.  

To Unit Capital  
        To Reserve  
            To Dividend Equalization  
(Being the amount received on sale of 
2lakhs unit at a NAV of ₹70 per unit) 

150  
20 
120 
10 

30.9.2012 Dividend Equalization Dr.  
Revenue A/c Dr.  
             To Bank  
(Being the amount distributed among 
20lakhs unit holders @ ₹8.60 per unit) 

10 
162 

 
 
172 

3. Calculation of Net Assets Value 

Market value of portfolio XXXX 
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Cash balance at year end XXXX 
Other Receivable / Assets XXXX 
Less: Other Payable / Liabilities XXXX 
NET ASSETS VALUE XXXX 
Number of unit XXXX 
Net Assets Value per unit (NAV/Number of unit) XXXX 
 
Question 3 
A Mutual Fund raised ₹ 100 lakh on April 1, 2012 by issue of 10 lakh units of ₹ 10 per unit. 
Thefund invested in several capital market instruments to build a portfolio of ₹90 lakhs. The 
initial expenses amounted to ₹ 7 lakh. During April, 2012, the fund sold certain securities of 
cost ₹ 38 lakhs for ₹ 40 lakhs and purchased certain other securities for ₹ 28.20 lakhs. The 
fund management expenses for the month amounted to ₹ 4.50 lakhs of which ₹ 0.25 lakh 
was in arrears. The dividend earned was ₹ 1.20 lakhs. 75% of the realized earnings were 
distributed. The market value of the portfolio on 30.04.2012 was ₹ 101.90 lakh. 
Determine NAV per unit. 
Solution 
calculation of NAV 
Market value of Portfolio 101.9 
Add: Cash balance (WN-1) 9.35 
Less: Liabilities for expenses -0.25 

Total A 111 

No. of unit B 10 
NAV A/B 11.1 

Working Note-1 
Cash Balance 
Opening balance Nil 
Initial issue of unit 100 
Initial expenses -7 
Puchase of portfolio -90 
Sales of securities 40 
Puchase of other securities -28.2 
Fund Management expenses -4.25 

4.5-0.25 
Dividend 1.2 
Distribution 75% of realised earning -2.4 
(40-38=2,) (2+1.2)x.75 

9.35 

Human resources accounting 
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The committee on HRA of the American Accounting Association defined HRA as “the process of identifying 
and measuring data about human resources and communicating this information to interested parties”. 
However, “Human Resources” are not yet recognised as ‘assets’ in the Balance Sheet.  

Models of Human Resources Accounting 

(A) Cost Based Models 
(1) Capitalisation of historical costs: The method involves capitalising of all costs related with making an 

employee ready for providing service – recruitment training, development etc. The sum of such costs for 
all the employees of the enterprise is taken to represent the total value of human resources. The value is 
amortised annually over the expected length of service of individual employees. The unamortised cost is 
shown as investment in human assets. 

(2) Replacement Cost: Replacement cost indicates the value of sacrifice that an enterprise has to make to 
replace its human resource by an identical one. 

(B) Economic Value Models 
(1) Opportunity Cost: This model uses the opportunity cost that is the value of an employee in his 

alternative use, as a basis for estimating the value of human resources. 
(2) Discounted wages and salaries: It the present value of estimated future earnings of employees (in the 

form of wages, salaries etc.) discounted by the rate of return on investment (cost of capital). 

For human resources accounting discounted wages & salary model given by lev & Schwartz 
model. 

Value = present value of expected salary to employee. 

Journal entry. 

 HR Assets A/C   Dr. 
   To, social equity 
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NBFC (Non-Banking Financing Company) 
 

1. Income recognition- Income on performing assets on accrual basis. 
Income on non-performing assets on cash basis. 

Minimum Net Owned Fund  
On registration of NBFC with RBI, all NBFCs have to comply with certain requirements 
like maintenance of the minimum Net Owned Fund (NOF), creation of reserve fund, 
compulsory transfer of certain percentage of net profit etc.  
NOF requirement for new companies applying for grant of CoR to commence business of 
an NBFC is stipulated at ₹ 200 lakh.  
In terms of Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, NBFCs are required to create a reserve fund and 
transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year. 

 
2. Classification of advance& Provision 
 

Classification Period Rate of provision 
 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 31.03.2017 31.03.2018 
Standard Normal assets .35%* .40% 
Sub standard As NPA for 

14 month 
As NPA for 
12 month 

10% 

Doubtful As sub 
standards 
for  14 
month 

As sub 
standards 
for  12 
month 

unsecure 100%, 
secure  
for 1year 20%,  
for 1-3 year 30%,  
>3year 50% 

Loss Classified as loss 
assets. 

100% 

*it is for systematically important non-deposit taking company and deposit taking 
company. 
For Non-systematically important non-deposit taking company and deposit taking 
company, it is .25%. 

3. VALUATION: Quoted Current investment should be valued at lower of cost or FMV 
categories wise. Permanent investment should be valued at cost only, however 
permanent decline should be consider. On valuation reduction in the value of 
investment should be charged to statement of profit and loss. 

4. Hire purchase & leasing company- Notes 

How to Calculate Provision for Lease Assets  
Overdue Instalment    xxx  
Instalment Not yet Due                                                                                                xxx  



53 
 

By, CA MD IMRAN (Chartered Accountant, M.com, B.com(H) ), M -9534019752, E- freebookmdimran@gmail.com      INDIA 

(-)Finance Charges not matured and not credited to P & L                                           
(xxx)  
(-) Depreciated Value (Cash Price-Dep at 20% rate SLM )                                             (xxx)  
Provision to be Created                                                                                                                                                 
xxx  
 
Additional Provision on Net Book Value 

Amount Overdue for the Period                  % of Prov                           Type of Assets  
0-12 Month Nil Standard Assets  
More than 12 Months but up to 24 Months         10%                        Sub Standard 
Assets  
More than 24 months but up to 36 Months         40%                        Doubtful Assets  
More than 36 months but up to 48 Months         70%                        Doubtful Assets  
More than 48 Months 100% Loss Assets  
 

5. Capital Adequacy Ratio- All NBFC should have CAR (Capital Adequacy Ratio) of 15% 

Meaning: Measurement of adequacy of capital resources of bank in relation to risks 
associatedwith its operation. 
Computation:  
Capital Adequacy Ratio = Capital Funds / Risk Adjusted Assets & Off Balance Sheet Items 
 
Components of Capital Funds 

As per the definition:  
Owned Fund = Aggregate of the paid-up equity capital, preference shares which are 
compulsorily convertible into equity, free reserves, balance in share premium account 
and capital reserves representing surplus arising out of sale proceeds of asset, excluding 
reserves created by revaluation of asset, after deducting therefrom accumulated 
balance of loss, deferred revenue expenditure and other intangible assets.  
Net Owned Fund = Owned Fund – Investments in shares of subsidiaries/ companies in 
same group/Other NBFC – Book value of debentures, bonds, outstanding loans and 
advances including hire purchase and lease finance made to and deposits with 
subsidiaries and companies in the same group (to the extent such sum exceeds 10% of 
owned fund)  

 
- Capital Funds are classified in two categories: 

Tier I and tier II. 
- Tier I Fund includes Paid Up capital, Statutory Reserves, Free Reserves as reduced by 

Preliminary expenses, losses, deferred revenue expenses, total referred as total fund. 
These total fund reduced by investment in other group of NBFC company In excess of 
10% of total fund. 
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Equity share capital  
Add: Paid Up capital, Statutory Reserves, Free Reserves  
Less: Preliminary expenses, losses, deferred revenue expenses  
                                                                    Total Fund  
Less : Investment in group companies over 10% of total funds  
Tier I capital or Net Owned Fund   
 

- Tier II Fund includes undisclosed reserves, general provision and loss reserves, hybrid 
debt capital instruments and subordinated assets. 

- Tier II Capital cannot exceed 100% of Tier I Capital. 
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
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Chapter- 8 

HOLDING COMPANY (CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT) 

General notes 

It is last of question of ca final exam financial reporting paper, irrespective of exam question 
easiest because generally examiner comment about paper after result, student has wasted 
time in attempting this question and finally didn’t succeed in providing correct answer. 
Follow below step: 

a. First of read question carefully and make a quick summary in rough, what have i to 
do in entirely. 

b. Then for solution, first of all prepare consolidated balance sheet then add all the item 
line by line and write on consolidated balance sheet, except reserve & surplus, 
minority and goodwill, Let it blank, After carrying out detailed procedure fill in the 
blank such result. However standalone financial statement of all companies should of 
same date, if not then update it. 

c. Then Generally following steps is followed to complete the consolidated balance 
sheet. 
 Bonus share calculation 
 Holding pattern and % of holding. 
 Revaluation of assets if any  
 Unrealised profit on stock. 
 Analysis of profit. 
 Cost of control. 
 Minority interest. 
 Consolidated general reserve. 
 Consolidated profit and loss. 

Detailed procedure (Also refer AS 21,23,27) 

1. Preparation of balance sheet 
If the holding subsidiaries relationship exists then consolidate assets and liabilities 
line by line. If joint venture relationship exists then consolidate assets and liabilities 
proportionately to the extent of share in joint venture. If it is associates then do not 
consolidate assets and liabilities only investment revaluation using post acquisition 
profit and such post acquisition profit will also included in consolidated profit and 
loss. Never incorporate in CBS equity / preference share of subsidiary, associate, joint 
venture and minority holding in parent& Never incorporate corresponding 
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investment in subsidiaries and joint venture in consolidated balance sheet. If 100% 
subsidiaries then everything will be line by line consolidation except share capital of 
subsidiaries and investment in subsidiaries no question of minority interest, do not 
do anything only line by line consolidation. 

2. Revaluation 
M.V on date of acquisition            xxxxx 
Less: B.V on date of acquisition   xxxxx 
Revaluation profit or loss       xxxxxx 
It is always pre acquisition profit or loss,  
Now calculate additional depreciation or saving on depreciation 
If revaluation profit then additional depreciation. If revaluation loss then saving in 
depreciation. To calculate it simply apply depreciation rate on revaluation profit or 
loss for remaining period. 
Other method not logical 
Depreciation on revised value of assets for remaining period - xxxxx 
Less: depreciation already charged     xxxxx 
Additional / saving in depreciation.     Xxxxx 

It is always post acquisition profit or loss 
 

3. Analysis of profit  
Particular  Pre 

acquisition 
profit 

Post 
acquisition 
profit 

General reserve 
Profit or loss 
All reserve (including statutory reserve) and losses 

XXXXX 
XXXXX 
XXXXX 

XXXXX 
XXXXX 
XXXXX 

Total XXXXX XXXXX 
Add:  
Dividend paid (from where it has been deducted) 
Dividend proposed and shown in balance sheet 
Bonus declared and entered by subsidiaries 
Add/Less: 
Abnormal Loss or gain 
Rectification of error 
Less: 
Rectification of dividend receipt by subsidiary from sub-
subsidiary in AOP (Before timing adjustment) to the 
extent of share hold by subsidiary in sub-subsidiary. 
(ONLY IN CASE OF CHAIN HOLDING) 

  
XXXXX 
XXXXX 
XXXXX 
 
XXXXX 
XXXXX 

This 
adjustment is 
made to 
arrive at 
regular 
business 
profit for 
Timing 
adjustment. 

 XXXXX XXXXX 
Timing adjustment -Period relevant for timing adjustment 
is the earliest date before date of acquisition whose profit 
available up to the closing of current financial year.  
Pre acquisition period- earliest date before date of 
acquisition whose profit available till date of acquisition. 

XXXXX XXXXX 
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Post acquisition period- from date of acquisition till the 
closing of current financial year. 
Less: 
Dividend paid (from where it should have been deducted) 
Abnormal loss  
Bonus declared whether entered by subsidiaries or not 
Unrealised profit 
Revaluation loss 
Additional depreciation 
Preference dividend ( Para 27) (proposed for preference 
dividend irrespective of question say or not) 
Add: 
Abnormal gain 
Revaluation profit 
Saving in depreciation 
Unrealised loss 
Add/Less: 
Post acquisition profit of subsidiary in sub-subsidiary AOP 
transfer to its parent AOP only after timing 
adjustment.(Only in case of chain holding) 

 
XXXXX 
XXXXX 
XXXXX 
 
XXXXX 
 
 
 
 
XXXXX 
XXXXX 
 
 

 
XXXXX 
XXXXX 
 
XXXXX 
 
XXXXX 
 
XXXXX 
 
XXXXX 
 
XXXXX 
XXXXX 

 XXXXXX XXXXXX 
Parent share XXXXXX 

(COC) 
XXXXXX 
(CPL) 

Minority share XXXXXX 
(MI) 

XXXXXX 
(MI) 

 
4. Cost of control 

Investment in all subsidiary               XXXXX 
Less:  
Paid up value of equity share capital of subsidiary for holding share XXXXX 
Paid up value of Preference share capital of subsidiary for holding share XXXXX 
Bonus issue of share capital of subsidiary for holding share XXXXX 
Pre acquisition profit of holding share in AOP XXXXX 
Rectification of dividend (Pre acquisition dividend credited to P/L) XXXXX 
Goodwill / (Capital reserve) XXXXXX 
Excess of investment over parent’s portion of equity is goodwill and excess 
of parent portion of equity over parent’s investment is capital reserve, if 
there are more than 1 subsidiaries, then goodwill and capital reserve 
arising on different subsidiary can be netted off. 
Equity means share holder funds- equity share capital, preference share 
capital & reserve and surplus. 

 

 
5. Minority interest 

Equity Share capital of subsidiary for minority share XXXXX 
Preference Share capital of subsidiary for minority share XXXXX 
Pre acquisition profit of subsidiaries share in AOP XXXXX 
Post acquisition profit of subsidiaries share in AOP XXXXX 
Bonus issue of share capital of subsidiary for minority share XXXXX 
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Total XXXXXX 
Minority interest shall be presented in consolidated balance sheet within the equity and shall be 
presented separately from the equity of the parent. 

6. Consolidated profit and loss 
Balance of holding as per separate balance sheet XXXX 
Less: Rectification of dividend (Pre acquisition dividend credited to P/L) XXXX 
Less: Unrealised profit (Earned by holding on sale to subsidiaries)  XXXX 
Less: Proposed dividend declared but not adjusted( to be shown in CBS) XXXX 
Add: Unrealised loss(Incurred by holding on sale to subsidiaries) XXXX 
Add: Post acquisition profit of holding share in AOP XXXX 
Total  XXXXXX 

 
7. Consolidated General reserve (if any) 

Balance of holding as per separate balance sheet XXXX 
Add: Post acquisition General reserve of holding share in AOP XXXX 
Total  XXXXXX 

 
8. Contra item 

Any payable or receivable within the group would be cancelled. If bill issued still held reduction in 
contra. If bill issued but not held, reduction in contingent liabilities. 
Investment in debenture of subsidiary  
It would be contra and excess or deficiency should be transferred to consolidated profit and loss. 

9. Rectification of error 
Before proceeding for holding company adjustment on timing difference rectify first if any error or 
omission specified in question. 

10. Dividend 

PARENT COMPANY 
If dividend paid then no treatment, if dividend proposed declared and shown in balance sheet then 
no treatment, if dividend proposeddeclared but not adjusted then reduce it from CPL and show in 
CBS as short term provision. 

Dividend proposed- AS-4 No any treatment except disclosure in NOTES to accounts, 
because it cannot be shown as a liabilities. 
 

 
SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 
Dividend paid – first add in AOP in pre or post from where it has been deducted. Now deduct in 
AOP after timing adjustment from where it should have been deducted as per source of dividend. 
However, if pre dividend declared by subsidiaries, is credited in SPL by holding then rectification 
entries to be made that is, parent share should deduct from CPL and add as deduction from 
investment in COC. 
 
Concept-Dividend is just a distribution of profit. When subsidiary company declare dividend out of 
profit then correspondingly profit get reduced. Earlier before declaration of dividend treatment of 
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profit was, from AOP to pre acquisition profit- reduced from carrying value of investment in COC & 
Post acquisition profit Added to CPL, Now the matter of dividend declared out of profit, to the 
extent of share of holding, already included in CPL, and minority share paid to minority share 
holder. The holding share in AOP after dividend declaration would have been in CPL of holding. So, 
ultimate profit to the extent of minority share got reduced. 
 
Dividend proposeddeclared 
If already adjusted in balance sheet then add in AOP and deduct only preference dividend  
If not adjusted in balance sheet then do not do anything in AOP or CPL, only short cut for equity it is 
only proposed for minority as deduction from minority and shown as short term provision in CBS. 
Because for holding it will be receivable and corresponding payable so net affect NIL. 

Dividend proposed- AS-4 No any treatment except disclosure in NOTES to accounts, 
Because it cannot be shown as a liabilities. 
Preference dividend (Para 27) - Proposed for preference dividend irrespective of question require 
or not. Share of minority in such preference dividend add with minority interest and parents share 
Add in consolidated profit and loss. Do not do anything in minority interest calculation. 
 
Relevance of dividend 
For AOP – dividend is relevant from the beginning of AOP (to the extent of received by holding 
company) till the date of consolidation. 
For Rectification- All the dividend declared before date of acquisition and paidafter the date of 
acquisition of shareis relevant. 

11. Unrealised profit 
Subsidiary sold to parent- Unrealised profit deduct from inventory in CBS and from AOP. 

Subsidiary sold to parent- Unrealised profit deduct from inventory in CBS and from profit to the extent of minority share in AOP and 
HOLDING SHARE- deduct profit in CPL 
Example: A subsidiary sells goods to the holding company goods worth Rs 30,000 on which the subsidiary company made 20% profit on selling price (holding company share holds 3000 out of 4000 
shares)  
Unrealized profit = 20% of 30,000 = 6,000  
Holding company’s share = ¾ *6,000 = 4,500. 

Holding sold to subsidiaries - Unrealised profit deducted from inventory in CBS and deducts profit in 
CPL. 
If there is unrealised loss then treatment would then instead of deduct, Add. 

12. Bonus Shares  
When a company issues bonus shares out of its accumulated profits it is necessary to distinguish between pre & post 
acquisition profits utilized for this purpose. In case bonus shares are issued out of pre – acquisition profits no 
adjustments are necessary for preparing the consolidated balance sheet because in such a case the holding company’s 
share of such profits gets reduced & the paid up value of the shares held by it will increase. As such the amount of 
goodwill remains the same. So ultimate effect would be nothing on either treatment is made or not. 
Bonus shares issued out of post acquisition profits will reduce the holding company’s share in revenue profits & increase 
the paid up value of the shares held. Consequently, the amount of goodwill gets reduced.  

Special consideration for calculation holding share in minority in case of bonus 
issue. 
When subsidiaries co. Issue bonus share then share capital increase with corresponding decrease in 
reserve and surplus, that is number of share increase by issue of bonus number of share. 
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Now, the problem is that holding accounted such bonus or not, if holding company accounts then 
number of share hold by holding increase with holding share in bonus issue, if holding company not 
account number of share representing ex bonus. 
Confirm whether holding made entry or not & subsidiary made entry or not. To 
calculateshareholding % in subsidiaries share hold by parent and of subsidiaries should be bring it 
at equilibrium, that if share of subsidiaries  is ex bonus then consider ex bonus number of share of 
holding company, if subsidiaries company number share is cum bonus then consider cum bonus 
number of share of holding company to determine shareholding %. 

Special consideration for calculation ofpre-acquisition dividend in case of bonus 
issue. 
Dividend declared by subsidiaries before bonus issue should be calculated on ex – bonus number of 
share of subsidiaries company. 

13. UPDATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

There may be a circumstance where given financial statement of different date from 
date of consolidation in such case financial statement updated up to date of 
consolidation. If business is carried on during such period then it mainly effects to SPL 
& CASH. 

 
Note – Fixed assets will be reduced by the amount of depreciation, if there is any other 
changes such also should be considered. 

 

DIFFERENT SITUATION 

1. MULTIPLE ACQUISITION 
Prepare one minority for number of share held by minority as on consolidated balance sheet, 
one cost of control, multiple AOP for in each date of acquisition calculating share of holding in 
each AOP for only incremental share acquired by holding at each date and share of minority in 
ultimate AOP. Then carry out all procedure as normally. 

2. MULTIPLE SUBSIDIARIES (chain holding) 

CASH Statement of profit and loss 
Opening figure 
Add: 
Cash profit (profit + depreciation) 
Increase in liabilities 
Decrease in assets 
Less: 
Increase in assets 
Decrease in liabilities 
Dividend including DDT 

 Opening figure 
Add: 
Net profit 
Less: 
Dividend including DDT 

 

Closing cash balance  Closing SPL   
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Here all assets and liabilities combined line by line. Prepare one COC as whole, one minority as 
whole disclosing different subsidiaries and multiple AOP for each subsidiary who is having 
investment.  
For chain holding- First begin with subsidiaries who is not having investment in other and 
thereafter ultimately prepare for holding company following must be kept in mind: 
 Pre-acquisition profit of all subsidiaries other than minorities transfer to cost of control 
 Post-acquisition profit of holding in ALL AOP transfer to CPL. 
 Post-acquisition profit of subsidiary transfer to its parent AOP only after timing 

adjustment 
 Rectification of dividend receipt by holding in COC & CPL. whereas received by 

subsidiary in COC & AOP (Deduct Before timing adjustment) for respective holding of 
share. 

Treatment of capital profit of sub-subsidiary 

o Direct method 
Capital profit apportioned between the minority interest and group interest. 
The group interest should be taken directly for calculation of goodwill / capital reserve. 
 

o Indirect method 
Capital profit / loss apportioned among minorities of the sub- subsidiaries and to the 
respective group companies. 
From the shares of respective group companies, their minority interests are deducted and 
the parent company gets its indirect shares. 

3. Joint venture 
Recognise all assets and liabilities of joint venture proportionately for share hold by holding. In joint 
venture minority interest will not arise. Proposed dividend by joint venture is not relevant. All other 
method is same as in COC, AOP, CPL & CGR. 

4. Associate 
Only investment revaluation using post acquisition profit. Such post acquisition profit will also be 
included in CPL. Calculate post acquisition profit by preparing AOP of associate. 

5. Intercompany holding 
o Subsidiary share in parent included in COC & MI. 
o Use equation method 

6. Disposal of share. 
Sale value 
Less: book value of investment proportionately  
Profit or loss on sale 
 

7. Hire purchase. 

Contra for mutual indebtedness Cancellation of unrealised profit 
- Creditor -debtor (for instalment due) 

-Stock (for instalment no yet 
due) 

 

-CPL - H.P. Assets 
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS – 1 

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

All accounting policies followed in preparation and presentation of financial statement 
should be separately disclosed at one place separately. Accounting policies means 
accounting principle and method of applying those principles adopted in the preparation 
and presentation of financial statement. 

 There are three fundamental accounting assumption going concern, consistency and 
accrual. There are presumption of adoption of fundamental accounting assumption in 
preparation and presentation of financial statement. Disclosure of non compliance with 
fundamental accounting assumption should be made. 

Going concern: Enterprises is viewed as continuing in operation for foreseeable future 
period that is neither it has intention nor necessity to liquidate or curtail operation, that is 
why depreciation is provided, assets is capitalised, etc. If it is not expected to continue for 
foreseeable future depreciation and provision not provided, assets is disclosed at realisable 
value and liabilities at payable value.   

Consistency: Accounting policies expected to follow consistently from one year to next 
year, if there is change in accounting policies then disclosure should be made. 

Accrual: Income and expenses expected to record on accrual basis. If in enterprises follow 
other than accrual basis of accounting then disclosure should be made in the books of 
accounts 

SELECTION OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Selection of accounting policies should be made in following order: 

1. Select such accounting policies, so as to give true and fair view. 
2. Consider  

Prudence- Profit are not anticipated but recognised only when it is realised. Provision 
is made for all known loss & liabilities. 
Substance over form- Consider substance of transaction not merely legal form. 
Materiality- The knowledge of which effect decision of user of Financial Statement. 

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 



79 
 

By, CA MD IMRAN (Chartered Accountant, M.com, B.com(H) ), M -9534019752, E- freebookmdimran@gmail.com      INDIA 

Change in accounting policies permitted only if it is require by statute, for compliance with 
accounting standards or it is considered change would result in more appropriate 
presentation of the financial statements of the enterprises. 

Any change in accounting policies which has a material affect should be disclosed. 
Disclosure should be made in the year in which such change is made. Effect of change in 
accounting policies should be provided retrospectively. 
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS -2  

VALUATION OF INVENTORIES 

Inventories: An asset held for sale in normal course of business, use in the process of 
production for such sale or in the form of material. It does not include spare parts, servicing 
equipment and standby equipment which meet the definition of property, plant and 
equipment. Such accounted as per AS 10. 

 Assets means anything from which future economic benefit is expected and which can be 
measured using substantial degree of estimation. Inventory includes finished goods, work 
in progress, raw materials, Stock in trade, stores and spares for regular use in general 
machine and other. Inventory do not include spare parts, servicing equipment and stand by 
equipment which meet the definition of Property plant equipment as per AS 10. 

Valuation: Finished goods and WIP should be valued at lower of cost or Net realisable 
value. Raw material should be valued at cost, however if finished goods in which such raw 
material is to be used , is expected to sold at lower of cost, then Raw material should value 
at lower of replacement cost or Actual Cost. 

However to calculate cost of finished goods, use actual cost of raw material. 

Scrap and By-product: Recognise by-product and Scrap at NRV (Net Realisable Value). Profit 
from sale of Scrape and by-product should be deducted from joint cost of main product, 
and such net joint cost would be the cost of main product. 

NRV= Sale value – Expenses – Cost of completion 

Determination of cost 

Following method is used in determining of cost 

1. Actual cost 
Cost of purchase including cost of conversion and other cost to bring the inventories 
in current location and position. 

2. Standards cost 
3. Retail selling price – Profit % 

Following item should be excluded while calculating cost: 

1. Abnormal loss. 
2. Storage cost. 
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3. Administration overhead incurred after bringing the inventory at current location and 
position. 

4. Selling and distribution expenses. 
5. Interest cost should not form part of cost of inventory unless inventory is qualifying 

assets. 

Guidance note on treatment of excise duty: 

1. Excise duty is manufacturing expenses it should be included in cost of production. 
2. When the liabilities for excise duty has been incurred but its collection is deferred, 

provision for unpaid liabilities should be made. 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 3  

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

Cash flow statement consist of cash flow from operating activity, cash flow from investing 
activity and cash flow from financing activity. 

Cash flow from operating activity means cash from principle revenue generating activity. 
Cash flow from investing activity means cash from sales or purchase of investment, 
property or assets. Cash flow from financing activity means cash from/to interest, 
dividend, and capital structure. 

There are two methods to calculate cash flow from operating activity, direct and indirect 
method. 

Direct method = 

cash sales XXX 
Add: Receipt from debtor 
         Trade commission 
         Other operating income 
 

XXX 
XXX 
XXX 

Less: cash purchase XXX 
Payment to creditor XXX 
         Office and selling expenses XXX 
         Other operating expenses Xxx 
Cash flow before taxation XXX 
Less: tax paid XXX 
Cash flow from operating activity XXX 
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Indirect method =   

Net profit XXX 
Add: Provision for taxation XXX 
Add:  Depreciation. 
          Non cash expenditure, outstanding expenses debited to SPL.  

XXX 

Less:  Profit on sale of investment and assets.  
           Non- cash income, accrued income credited to SPL. 

XXX 

Cash flow from operating activity before change in working capital XXX 
Add: increase in current liabilities & decrease in current assets XXX 
Less: increase in current assets & decrease in current liabilities. XXX 
Cash flow from operating activity XXX 
 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

1. Cash flow from operating activity #### 
2. Cash flow from investing activity #### 
3. Cash flow from financing activity #### 

CASH FLOW FROM ALL ACTIVITY (1+2+3) #### 
ADD: opening cash and cash equivalent #### 
Closing cash and cash equivalent  #### 
 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS – 4 

EVENT OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 

Here, Events are those significant gain or loss which arises after the balance sheet date but 
before approval of financial statement. 

Event occurring after the balance sheet date are of two types, first the condition of which 
exist on balance sheet date and other the condition of which doesn’t exist on the balance 
sheet date, for former adjustment is required in financial statement but for later no any 
adjustment is required in financial statement except when it result in violation of going 
concern assumption. 

No any provision should be made for proposed dividend, only disclosure in notes to 
accounts is required. It is a part of equity. 
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS – 5 

NET PROFIT OR LOSS, PRIOR PERIOD ITEM AND CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

After announcement of Schedule III, Concept for Net profit or loss no more relevant.  

Prior period item – income or expenses recognised in current year due to error or omission 
in preparation of financial statement of earlier period, it should be provided prospectively. 
It should be disclosed separately. 

Prior period item doesn’t includes other adjustment necessitated by circumstances. For 
example- expected increase in bad debt, Increase in salary retrospectively, etc 

Change in accounting estimate – accounting estimate by their nature are approximations 
that may need revision as additional information become known. 

When it is difficult to distinguish whether change is change in accounting policies or change 
in accounting estimate, change is treated as change in accounting estimate. 

Change in accounting policies – Accounting principle are specific accounting principles and 
the methods of applying those principles adopted by an enterprises in the preparation and 
presentation of financial statement. Change in accounting policies allowed only when it 
result in more appropriate presentation or it is required by law or to comply with an 
accounting standards. 

 eg. Change in valuation of inventories, change in method of depreciation. Effect of Change 
in accounting policies should be provided retrospectively when it is material for either 
current year or future year. It should be disclosed separately. Policy which is substantially 
different from existing accounting policy, not regarded as change in accounting policy. 
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS- 7  

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

Construction contract: contract specially negotiated to construct or destruct any assets or 
group of assets. 

Contract costs should comprise:  
(a) Costs that relate directly to the specific contract;  

1. Site labour costs, including site supervision;  
2. Costs of materials used in construction;  
3. Depreciation of plant and equipment used on the contract;  
4. Costs of moving plant, equipment and materials to and from the contract site;  
5. Costs of hiring plant and equipment;  
6. Costs of design and technical assistance that aredirectly related to the contract;  
7. The estimated costs of rectification and guarantee work, including expected 
warranty costs; and  
8. Claims from third parties. 

(b) Costs that are attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the 
contract; and  

1. Insurance;  
2. Costs of design and technical assistance that are not directly related to a specific 
contract; and  
3. Construction overheads.  
4. Borrowing costs capitalized under AS 16 “Borrowing Cost”  

(c) Such other costs as are specifically chargeable to the customer under the terms of the 
contract.  
 
Contract cost doesn’t include:  
Costs that cannot be attributed to contract activity or cannot be allocated to a contract are 
excluded from the costs of a construction contract. Such costs include:  

(a) General administration costs for which reimbursement is not specified in the 
contract;  
(b) Selling costs;  
(c) Research and development costs for which reimbursement is not specified in the 
contract; and  
(d) Depreciation of idle plant and equipment that is not used on a particular contract. 

Method to recognise revenue – Revenue is recognised in accordance with stage of 
completion of the contract activity at reporting date, this method of revenue recognition 
is referred as percentage of completion method. 

Step 1- Calculate degree of completion:𝑨𝒄𝒕𝒖𝒂𝒍 𝒄𝒐𝒔𝒕 𝒊𝒏𝒄𝒖𝒓𝒓𝒆𝒅

𝑻𝒐𝒕𝒂𝒍 𝒆𝒙𝒑𝒆𝒄𝒕𝒆𝒅 𝒄𝒐𝒔𝒕
∗ 𝟏𝟎𝟎 
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Lets assume degree of completion is X% 

Step 2- Revenue to be recognised 

Total revenue * X% XXXX 
Less- Total Actual cost   Or total cost * 
X% 

XXXX 

Cumulative Profit XXXX 
Less: Profit Recognised till last year XXXX 
Current year profit         XXXX 

Para 35: Recognise expected loss on contract entered irrespective of degree of completion, 
when contract cost expected to exceed contract revenue. Provision for expected loss to be 
cancelled in next year. 
 
Actual cost    ##### 
Less: Revenue recognised ##### 
Actual loss up to current year    ##### 
Provision for expected loss 

Total expected loss      

  
   ##### 

Less: loss recognised        ##### 
Provision to be made       ##### 
Para 14: Incentive payment for early completion to be recognised only when :  

1. The contract is sufficiently advanced that is probable that the specified performance 
will be met or exceeded. 

2. Amount of incentive can be measured reliably. 
 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS -9  
REVENUE RECOGNITION 
This AS deals with Sale of goods, Rendering of services, interest, dividend and Royality. 
Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is gross inflow of cash, receivables or other consideration arising in the course of 
the ordinary activity of enterprises from the sale of goods, from the rendering of services, 
interest, royalties and dividend and from the use enterprises resources. It should be 
recognise when it is measureable and there is no uncertainty in revenue collection. 
Sale of goods: Sale of goods should be recognised when Risk and reward incidental to 
ownership have been transferred. 
Sale of goods 
Situation Revenue recognition 
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1. Delivery is delayed at buyer’s request and buyer takes 
title and accepts billing 

Revenue should be recognised notwithstanding that 
physical delivery has not been completed 

2. Delivered subject to conditions 
- (a) installation and inspection i.e. goods are sold 
subject to installation, inspection etc. 
 

Revenue should normally not be recognised until the 
customer accepts delivery and installation and inspection 
are complete. 

- (b) on approval Revenue should not be recognised until the goods have 
been formally accepted by the buyer 

- (c) guaranteed sales i.e. delivery is made giving 
the buyer an unlimited right of return 

recognise the sale but to make a suitable provision for 
returns based on previous experience. 

- (d) consignment sales i.e. a delivery is made 
whereby the recipient undertakes to sell the 
goods on behalf of the consignor. 

Revenue should not be recognised until the goods are 
sold to a third party. 

- (e) cash on delivery sales Revenue should not be recognised until cash is received 
by the seller or his agent. 

3. Sales where the purchaser makes a series of 
instalment payments to the seller, and the seller delivers 
the goods only when the final payment is received 

Revenue from such sales should not be recognised until 
goods are delivered. 

4. Special order and shipments Revenue from such sales should not be recognised until 
goods are manufactured, identified and ready for 
delivery to the buyer by the third party. 

5. Sale/repurchase agreements i.e. where seller 
concurrently agrees to repurchase the same goods at a 
later date 

For such transactions that are in substance a financing 
agreement, the resulting cash inflow is not revenue as 
defined and should not be recognised as revenue. 
The difference is finance expenses. 

6. Sales to intermediate parties i.e. where goods are sold 
to distributors, dealers or others for resale 

Revenue from such sales can generally be recognised if 
significant risks of ownership have passed 

7. Subscriptions for publications Revenue received or billed should be deferred and 
recognised either on a straight line basis over time 

8. Instalment sales When the consideration is receivable in instalments, 
revenue attributable to the sales price exclusive of 
interest should be recognised at the date of sale. The 
interest element should be recognised as revenue, 
proportionately to the unpaid balance due to the seller. 

9. Trade discounts and volume rebates Trade discounts and volume rebates received are not 
encompassed within the definition of revenue, since 
they represent a reduction of cost. Trade discounts and 
volume rebates given should be deducted in determining 
revenue. 

 
Rendering of Services: There are two method to recognise revenue from rendering of 
serves- Proportionate completion method and Completed Services method. 
Proportionate Completion Method: It is used when services provided in more than one act. 
Revenue is recognised proportionately by reference to the performance of each contract. 
For practical purpose SLM is followed unless other method gives better and fair 
presentation. 
Completed Services Method: It is used when services provided in single act. Here revenue is 
recognised when sole or final act takes place. 
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Rendering of Services 
Situation Revenue recognition 
1. Installation Fees When the equipment is installed and accepted by the 

customer. 
2. Advertising and insurance agency commissions Revenue should be recognised when the service is 

completed. 
3. Financial service commissions A financial service may be rendered as a single act or 

may be provided over a period of time. Revenue should 
be recognised accordingly. 

4. Admission fees Revenue from artistic performances, banquets and other 
special events should be recognised when the event 
takes place. When a subscription to a number of events 
is sold, the fee should be allocated to each event on a 
systematic and rational basis. 

5. Tuition fees Revenue should be recognised over the period of 
instruction. 

6. Entrance and membership fees Revenue recognition from these sources will depend on 
the nature of the services being provided. Entrance fee 
received is generally capitalised. 

 
Interest: Income from interest should be recognised on accrual basis. 
Dividend: Income from dividend should be recognised when it is actually received or right 
to receive dividend has been established. i.e when dividend is declared by companies. 
Royalty: Income from royalty should be recognised as per agreement. 
Sale and Purchase back transaction-  Substance of transaction should be considered, When 
Goods sold to purchase back then the difference between the sale price and re-purchase 
price should be consider as finance expenses. 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS – 10 
PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT 

Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE):  
Tangible item held for use in production or supply of goods or services, Rental to other or 
for Administrative purpose AND expected to be used during more than a period of 12 
month. 
Cost of an item on PPE should be Recogniseas assets when (a) It is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity, And (b) The cost of the 
item can be measured reliably. 
Spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised in accordance 
with this AS-10 when they meet the definition of property, plant and equipment. 
Otherwise, such items are classified as inventory 
Cost of major inspection to be capitalised. 
Cost of replacement capitalise if meets the definition of PPE. 
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Measurement at Recognition 
Cost of Property, Plant & Equipment: Purchase price including Any directly attributable 
cost (all cost incurred to acquire fixed assets, cost incurred in bringing fixed assets at 
current location and position, installation cost, borrowing cost on QA, non- refundable 
purchase tax) and also includes decommissioning, restoration and similar liabilities. 
Reduced by Trade discount, rebate or Subsidy.Abnormal cost should not be included 
because it is not directly attributable to fixed assets, Abnormal loss means- Loss other than 
normal (unavoidable),that is avoidable for eg. detention charges paid to custom authority, 
etc. 
Internal profits are eliminated. 
Cost of Dismantling and Removal of the Item of PPE and Restoring the SiteIncluded in the 
cost of the respective item of property plant and equipment. 

Cost of Property, Plant & Equipment in case of exchange:  
Fair value of assets given or obtained whichever is more clearly evident. It will be measured 
at carrying amount of assets given up if either the exchange transaction lack commercial 
transaction or fair value is not measurable. 
Difference between book value and fair value of assets given, charged to P/L. Obviously fair 
value of assets given is deducted from payment to be made for acquisition of assets in case 
of exchange 
Discounting in Case Payment is deferred Beyond Normal Credit Terms: 
If it is acquired in deferred credit term then the difference between the purchase price in 
case of normal credit term and the amount paid, is recognised as interest expenses. AS-16 
capitalise if it is on QA. 
Cost of Self constructed assets: Recognise to the extent of direct cost incurred and general 
construction cost which can be allocated to specific fixed assets. 
Improvement: Recognise to the extent of cost incurred in improved performance beyond 
the standards performance. 
Disposed off: Profit or loss on sale of PPE is recognised in Statement of Profit and loss. 

Measurement after Recognition 
Allow to choose either cost model or the revaluation model. 
Cost model: 
Cost – Any accumulated depreciation – Any accumulated impairment loss. 
 
Revaluation model:  
It is optional. It should be on all classes of assets uniformly. Revaluation should be adjusted 
in Gross carrying amount. 
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First time revaluation 
Increase credited to revaluation surplus and decrease debited to Profit and loss. 
Subsequent revaluation 
Increase credited to P&L to the extent earlier debited to SPL and excess transfer revaluation 
surplus.Decrease to be adjusted with revaluation reserve to the extent of revaluation 
surplus beyond that should be debited to Statement of Profit and loss accounts. 
 
Accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is adjusted to equate the difference 
between the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount of the asset after taking into 
account accumulated impairment loss. 
On derecognition of an item of PPE,revaluation surplus included in owner’s equity should 
be transferred to revaluation reserve. 
Revaluation Reserve cannot be distributed as dividend. 
 

DEPRECIATION ACCOUNTING 

Depreciation means wearing out of fixed assets or decrease in value of fixed assets due to 
effluxion of time, obsolescence through technology, due to use or due to any other reason 
over useful life of depreciable assets. Depreciation on assets ceases when it is classified as 
held for sale or derecognised. 

Depreciable assets 

PPE 

Depreciable amount: Cost/Carrying amount – Residual value. 

Generally adopted method of depreciation 

Straight line Method:         Depreciation = Purchase price – Scrap Value 
        No. of year 

Written down value method: Depreciation Rate : 1 −    𝑛
  

 
 

 
Units of production method- Result in a charge based on the expected use or output 
 
    Depreciation = Carrying amount* Actual production/expected 
production 
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Change in method of depreciation 

It is change in accounting estimate. It should be provided prospectively. 

Change in Expected useful life 

It is change in accounting estimate. It should be provided prospectively. 

 

 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-11 
THE AFFECT OF CHNAGE IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE 
Foreign exchanges are dealt in two aspect foreign operation and foreign currency 
transaction. 
FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTION 
Foreign currency transaction recognised using reporting currencies. Reporting currency 
means Spot rate, approximate rate or average rate of subjected currency. 
 
PARA 38 & 39 of AS 11: When Forward contract entered for speculation purpose then 
Premium (difference between exchange rate and forward) should not be considered. Only 
on sale the difference between contract rate and sale rate will be recognised in the profit 
and loss account. 
 
When forward contract entered for hedging purpose then Premium or discount should 
amortise expenses or income over the life of the contract. Also, exchange difference on 
such forward contract should be recognised in SPL in the reporting period in which such 
exchange rate changes. Any profit and loss arising on cancellation or renewal of such a 
forward exchange contract should be recognised as income or as expenses for the period. 
 
Foreign currency monetary Item: Money held (Cash & Bank) And Known amount of assets, 
liabilities, receivable, payable or determinable amount of money in foreign currency whose 
realisation or payment fixed under contract. 
 
PARA 13: Foreign currency monetary item should be reported at closing rate on balance 
sheet date, the difference transfer to exchange difference and such exchange difference 
transfer to Statement of Profit and Loss accounts. 
 
LONG TERM FOREIGN CURRENCY MONTRORY ITEM (LTFCMI) 
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Foreign currency monetary item expected to settle in subsequent year or in more than one 
accounting period. LTFCMI has two optional treatments either PARA-13 or PARA-46. 
 
PARA-46  
Depreciable Assets: Exchange difference related to depreciable assets, Capitalised to assets 
and depreciate it over life of assets. Both exchange difference due to reporting and due to 
settlement should be capitalised however interest payment should be dealt in accordance 
with AS-16. 
Non depreciable assets: Exchange difference shown as FOREIGN CURRENCY MONETARY 
ITEM (FCMIT) Difference account under head of RESEREVE AND SURPLUS if credit balance 
and under head of non-current assets if Debit balance. It is written off over life of LTFCMI 
but not beyond 31st March 2020. 
LOAN/ BORROWING 
Both difference, exchange difference due to reporting and due to settlement, should be 
consider. 
 
FOREIGN OPERATION 
On translation of financial statement of foreign operation convert all assets and liabilities at 
closing rate and all income and expenses at transaction date rate or average rate. 
However in case of integral foreign operation convert fixed assets,Depreciable 
assetsandinvestment(FDI) at transaction date rate. 
Exchange difference resulting from translation of financial statement transfer to foreign 
currency translation reserve as capital profit in case of non-integral foreign operation. 
However in case of integral foreign operation exchange difference transferred to statement 
of profit and loss. 
 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-12 
GOVERNMENT GRANT 
Government grants are assistance by government in cash or kind to an enterprise for past 
or future compliance with certain conditions. Accounting for government grants like 
subsidies, cash incentives, duty drawbacks, etc as follows: 
Recognition: Government grant should be recognised when subsidies received from 
government or certain to receive. Grant may be in many forms their types and recognition 
is given as follows. 
Income grant, Expenses grant or bailout grant: Credited to statement of profit and loss. 
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Grant for promoter contribution or for situation in backward area: Credited to capital 
reserve, Which can be neither distributed as dividend nor considered as deferred income. 
Grant for non-depreciable assets: Credited to capital reserve or shown as deduction from 
the gross value of assets. 
Grant for Depreciable assets: It is having two optional treatments either net method or 
gross method. 
Net method: initially grant is deducted from assets and assets net of grant is depreciated 
over life of assets. 
Gross method: Grant is deferred and amortise over life of assets in the ratio of depreciation. 
Refund of government grant- it is an extraordinary item as per AS-5, it is applied first 
against unamortised deferred credit balance and excess charge to SPL. 

However in case of depreciable assets wherein net method is followed, it is added to fixed 
assets and subsequent depreciation on revised value of assets, and separate disclose 
required for increase in depreciation consequent to return of government grant. 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-13  

ACCOUNTING FOR INVESTMENT 
INVESTMENT: Investment means assets held for earning income (by way of interest, 
dividend or rental), appreciation or other benefit to the investing enterprise. It is classified 
as current investment or permanent investment. An investment readily realisable and 
intended to hold not more than 1 year is known as current investment, investment other 
than current investment is permanent investment. Investment property in the nature of 
Land or building which is intended to use by or in the operation of the investing properties 
deals in accordance of AS-10 that is now recognised as per cost model. 

Cost of investment: Purchase cost including tax on purchase, Expenses to obtain title. 

Cost of investment when issued own share to acquire investment: the value of investment 
or Fair value of securities issued. 

Cost of investment in case of exchange: Fair value of assets given or obtain whichever is 
more clearly evident. 

RIGHT SHARE:When right shares offered are subscribed for, the cost of the right shares is 
added to the carrying amount of the original holding. If rights are not subscribed for but are 
sold in the market, the sale proceeds are taken to the profit and loss statement. However, 
When share acquired cum-right, then proceeds from sale of right share deducted from cost 



93 
 

By, CA MD IMRAN (Chartered Accountant, M.com, B.com(H) ), M -9534019752, E- freebookmdimran@gmail.com      INDIA 

of acquisition to the extent of difference between cum-right share price and ex-right share 
price and excess transfer to profit and loss accounts. 

VALUATION: Current investment should be valued at lower of cost or FMV categories wise. 
Permanent investment should be valued at cost only, however permanent decline should 
be consider. On valuation reduction in the value of investment should be charged to 
statement of profit and loss. 

Valuation of government securities at cost. 

RECLASSIFICATION: When current classified as Permanent Investment then value at lower 
of cost or FMV. When Permanent investment classified as Current investment then value at 
lower of cost or carrying amount. Follow rule of whatever investment was before 
classification. 

Disposal of investment: Profit or loss on sale of investment should be recognised in SPL. 



94 
 

By, CA MD IMRAN (Chartered Accountant, M.com, B.com(H) ), M -9534019752, E- freebookmdimran@gmail.com      INDIA 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-14 

ACCOUNTING FOR AMALGAMATION 

AMALGAMATION: Amalgamation means external reconstruction. When two or more 
company merge to form a new company, known as amalgamation. 

NATURE: An amalgamation may be either in the nature of merger or nature of purchase. 
Accounting treatment in both the cases is as follows. 

AMALGAMATION IN THE NATURE OF MERGER 

All assets and liabilities including reserve of amalgamating company incorporated at book 
value. The difference between the purchase consideration and Share capital of Transferor 
Company should be adjusted in RESERVE. 

AMALGAMATION IN THE NAUTRE OF PURCHASE 

Only assets and liabilities of amalgamating company incorporated at taken over value. The 
difference between NET ASSETS TAKEN OVER and PURCHASE CONSIDERATION is result in 
either goodwill or capital reserve. Excess of net assets taken over, over purchase 
consideration is CAPITAL RESERVE. Excess of purchase consideration over net assets taken 
over is GOODWILL. 

Statutory Reserve incorporated with corresponding amalgamation adjustment accounts 
Reserve. 

PURCHASE CONSIDERATION: It is the amount payable by amalgamated company to 
shareholder of amalgamating company. 

 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-15 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS: Employee benefits means consideration paid by employer to 
employee for value of services performed by employee. 

 Types of employee benefit: 

 Short term employee benefit- expected to paid within 12 month. 

 Long term employee benefit 
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 Termination benefit or voluntary retirement scheme 

SHORT TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 

It is expected to be paid within 12 months from balance sheet date. 

LEAVE 

UNPAID: No any treatment 

PAID: If vested in nature that is cash against leave or leave against leave then full amount 
should be recognised for all accumulated leave. 

However if unvested in nature that in only leave against leave then proportionate amount 
recognised for leave expected to avail. 

LONG TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFIT 

It is expected to pay in more than one accounting period. There are two types of long term 
employee benefits DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN and DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION. 

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN: It contain Employer and employee both contribution. 
Employee benefit is recognised as normal expenses and charged to profit and loss accounts. 

DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION: It contains only employer contribution. Here entity 
maintain Plan assets and defined benefit obligation. Projected unit credit method is used to 
recognise expenses. 

Step of projected unit credit method is as follows: 

Step 1 – Estimate total amount of employee benefit to be paid. 

Eg. 1% of final salary for each year of services current salary is 12000. 

1% of (12000*1.1*1.1*1.1*1.1)= 176 

Step 2 – Allocate estimated employee benefit over the year. 

Step 3 – Calculate current service cost (Present value of allocated estimated employee 
benefit using reverse discounting) 

Estimation 
(a) 

176 176 176 176 176 

DF (b) .683 .751 .826 .909 .1 
CSC (a*b) 120 132 145 160 176 
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Step 4 – Prepare liabilities sheet year wise as follows: 

Year 1 2 3 4 5 
Opening 
balance 

0 120 264 435 639 

Add: CSC  120 132 145 160 176 
Add: Interest 
cost 

0 12 26 44 64 

Closing 
balance 

120 264 435 639 879 

  

PLAN ASSETS 

Plan assets account 
To, Opening balance b/f    
To, Contribution paid in plan 
assets  

 By benefit Paid out of plan assets  

To, Expected return  By Actuarial loss  
To, Actuarial gain (b.f)  By Closing Balance B/f  
    
 

Calculate half yearly interest rate = √1 + 𝑅𝑎𝑡𝑒  - 1 

Expected return is the sum of  

1. return on opening & 
2. return on (opening + contribution +return on opening calculated on point 1 – benefit 

paid) 

Actuarial gain or loss is difference between the expected return & actual return.Actuarial 
gains and losses should be recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss as 
income or expense in the year in which it is incurred. 

Termination benefits 
Termination benefits are recognized by an enterprise as a liability and an expense only 
when the enterprise has  
(i) A detailed formal plan for the termination which is duly approved, and  
(ii) A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  
Where the termination benefits fall due within twelve months after the balance sheet date, 
an undiscounted amount of such benefits should be recognized as liability in the balance 
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sheet with a corresponding charge to Profit & Loss Account. However, when the 
termination benefits fall due more than twelve months after the balance sheet date, such 
benefits should be discounted using an appropriate discount rate. 

Accounting Treatment  
In the Balance Sheet of the enterprise, ‘the amount recognized as a defined benefit liability 
should be the net total of the following amounts:  
(a) the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date;  
(b) minus any past service cost not yet recognized;  
(c) minus the fair value at the balance sheet date of plan assets (if any) out of which the 
obligations are to be settled directly.’ 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-16 

BORROWING COST 

CAPITALISATION: Borrowing cost incurred on qualifying assets before the assets ready to 
use is eligible for capitalisation, and borrowing cost incurred thereafter is treated as a 
revenue expenditure. Qualifying assets means, Assets which takes substantial period of 
time to get ready to use or sale,ordinarily, a period of twelve months is considered as 
substantial period of time unless a shorter or longer period can be justified on the basis of 
facts and circumstances of the case. Borrowing cost can be capitalised to the extent of 
actual borrowing cost, if borrowing cost to be capitalised exceed actual borrowing cost then 
cancel it in the ratio of borrowing cost to be capitalised. Incidental and ancillary cost 
incurred in acquisition or arrangement of borrowing is also considered as borrowing cost, 
consider it while calculating general borrowing rate. 

RATE: Rate would be effective interest rate. Calculate effective interest on special 
borrowing and on general borrowing separately. In case of special borrowing if , any 
interest received on surplus then deduct it while calculating effective interest rate of 
special borrowing. 

CALCULATION OF AMOUNT TO BE CAPITAISED 

Expenses on QA*ROI*Period of capitalisation 

COMMENCEMENT OF CAPITALISATION: 

Capitalisation of borrowing cost commence when all of the following condition satisfied: 

1. Borrowing cost is being incurred. 
2. Expenditure on qualifying assets is being incurred. 
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3. Active development is being taken place. 

SUSPENTION OF CAPITALISAITON OF BORRWING COST 

Capitalisation of borrowing cost is suspended when active development is not taking place 
in due to abnormal reason in extended period. 

However, capitalisation of borrowing costs is not normally suspended during a period when 
substantial technical and administrative work is being carried out. Capitalisation of 
borrowing costs is also not suspended when a temporary delay is a necessary part of the 
process of getting an asset ready for its intended use or sale. 

CESSATION OF CAPITALISATION OF BORROWING COST 

No capitalisation of borrowing cost when borrowing cost ceases to incur or Assets is ready 
to use- means substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets for 
its intended use or sale are complete, whichever falls earlier. 

FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS DUE TO BORROWING 

This exchange loss in addition to borrowing cost. Recognise exchange loss on foreign 
borrowing but to the extent of lower of following 

- Exchange loss on borrowing, or  
- Difference between estimated cost of local borrowing and Actual borrowing cost.  

If any remaining balance of exchange difference, It will be accounted as per AS -11. 
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-17 

SEGMENT REPORTING 

SEGMENT: Different unit of an entity is known as segment. Segment is identified as 
business segment or geographical segment. Business segment identified on the basis of 
production of good or rendering of services. Geographical segment identified on the basis 
of situated in different geographical location. 

INDENTIFICATION OF REPORTABLE SEGMENT 

A segment of an entity would be considered as reportable segment if it’s revenue, result or 
assets consist of 10% or more of total entity’s sales, result or assets respectively. Segment 
revenue doesn’tinclude interest, dividend, profit on sale of investment or extinguishment of 
debt. 

Segment identified should consist of 75% of total entity’s external sales (excluding 
intersegment transfer), if it falls below 75% then further selection to cover 75% of 
organisation sales.  

Segment assets do not include income tax assets (example- Deferred tax assets, refund 
receivable etc) 

Segment revenue is the aggregate of  
(i) The portion of enterprise revenue that is directly attributable to a segment,  
(ii) The relevant portion of enterprise revenue that can be allocated on a reasonable basis 
to a segment, and  
(iii) Revenue from transactions with other segments of the enterprise.  
 
Segment revenue does not include:  
a. Extraordinary items as defined in AS 5.  
b. Interest or dividend income, including interest earned on advances or loans to other 
segments unless the operations of the segment are primarily of a financial nature; and  
c. Gains on sales of investments or on extinguishment of debt unless the operations of the 
segment are primarily of a financial nature.  
 

Segment expense is the aggregate of  
(i) The expense resulting from the operating activities of a segment that is directly 
attributable to the segment, and  
(ii) The relevant portion of enterprise expense that can be allocated on a reasonable basis 
to the segment,  
(iii) Including expense relating to transactions with other segments of the enterprise.  
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Segment expense does not include:  
a. Extraordinary items as defined in AS 5.  
b. Interest expense, including interest incurred on advances or loans from other segments, 
unless the operations of the segment are primarily of a financial nature.  
c. Losses on sales of investments or losses on extinguishment of debt unless the operations 
of the segment are primarily of a financial nature.  
d. Income tax expense; and  
e. General administrative expenses, head-office expenses, and other expenses that arise at 
the enterprise level and relate to the enterprise as a whole. However, costs are sometimes 
incurred at the enterprise level on behalf of a segment. Such costs are part of segment 
expense if they relate to the operating activities of the segment and if they can be directly 
attributed or allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis.  
 

Segment assets are those operating assets that are employed by a segment in its 

operating activities and that either are directly attributable to the segment or can be 
allocated to the segment on a reasonable basis. 

If the segment result of a segment includes interest or dividend income, its segment assets 
include the related receivables, loans, investments, or other interest or dividend generating 
assets.  
Segment assets do not include:  
• income tax assets;  
• assets used for general enterprise or head-office purposes.  
Segment assets are determined after deducting related allowances/provisions that are 
reported as direct offsets in the balance sheet of the enterprise. 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-18  

Introduction 

All the transaction takes place with the related parties during the year should be disclose 
irrespective of that it is made at arm length price or normal price, Also disclosure of related 
parties relationship should be made irrespective of transaction takes place or not with 
related parties during the year. Related parties transaction means transfer of resources or 
obligation between related parties, regardless whether or not price is charged. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 

RELATED PARTY AS PER PARA 3 
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3a. Enterprises that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control or are 
controlled by or under common control with the reporting enterprises. (holding, subsidiary 
and other subsidiaries of holding company known as fellow subsidiaries.) 

3b. Associates and Joint venture of the reporting enterprises and the investing parties or 
venturer in respect of which the reporting enterprises is an Associates ora Joint venture. 

3c. Individual owning interest in voting power that gives them power to control or power to 
exercise significant influence* over the enterprises, and relative of such individual. 

3d. Key Managerial Person and relative of such personnel. 

3e. Enterprises over which any person described in (c ) or (d) able to exercise significant 
influence. 

* Significant influence can be exercised if holds 20% or more directly or indirectly. 
Control means holding 51% or more, power to compose BOD or substantial interest 
(20%VP)&power to direct. 

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT 

Following should be disclosed. 

Mnemonics: N3DTV 

1. Name of Related party. 
2. Nature of transaction. 
3. Nature of relationship. 
4. Discount or Bad debt. 
5. Transaction at Arms’ length or at normal price. 
6. Volume of transaction. 
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-19 
LEASE 
LEASE: An agreement, whereby lessor agree to transfer right to use an assets in 
return of payment or series of payment. There are two types of lease finance lease 
and operating lease. 
FINANCE LEASE: When risk and reward incidental to ownership has been transferred. 
Satisfied any of the following condition: 
1. Automatic transfer of ownership at end. 
2. Purchase option at end of lease term at very reduced price. 
3. Lease term is equal to economic life of assets. 
4. Present value of lease rent is equal to fair value of assets. 
5. Assets is of special nature that can be used in only special case, like ambulance. 

JOURNAL ENTRIES 

LESSEE LESSOR 
Assets on lease A/c                              
Dr.*** 
     To Lessor A/c 
(Being assets purchased on lease) 

Lease receivable A/c                                  
Dr.** 
     To Assets on lease 
(Being assets Transfered on lease) 

Lessor A.c                                                
Dr. 
     To Bank a/c 
(Being Down payment made.) 

Bank a/c      
Dr. 
                To Lease Receivable A/c 
(Being Down payment receipt.) 

Lessor A/c                                                  
Dr. 
Finance Charge A/c                                  
Dr. 
        To Bank A/c 
(Being instalment paid) 

Bank A/c                                                        
Dr. 
To Finance charge  A/c 
To Lease receivable A/c 
(Being instalment received) 

Depreciation A/c                                       
Dr. 
       To Assets A/c 
(Being depreciation charged on assets) 

No depreciation Entry 

Statement of Profit and loss a/c            
Dr. 
       To Finance Charge 
        To depreciation    
(Being finance charge and 
depreciation charged to Statement of 
profit and loss a/c) 

Finance charges A/c                                    
Dr. 
      To Statement of Profit and loss 
(Being Finance charge Transferred to 
Statement of Profit and loss a/c) 
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*** Assets or Liabilities will be 
recorded at lower of Present value of 
minimum lease payment or Fair value. 
Whenever Value is fair value the 
calculate IRR and then use such IRR  to 
calculate Finance charge. To calculate 
IRR choose any two rate to discount 
Lease rent & GRV so that fair value 
falls in between above two PV. As 
shown in following formula. 
 
 

** It will be recorded at present value 
of Gross investment or at net 
investment. 
UEFI( unearned finance income) = 
gross investment – net investment 
Gross investment sum of lease rent, 
guaranteed residual value & 
unguaranteed residual value. Net 
investment means present value of 
gross investment. In simple term UEFI 
means  finance charges. 

IRR= Lower rate +  
   

     
𝑋 𝐷𝑖𝑓𝑓 𝑖𝑛 𝑟𝑎𝑡𝑒

  
 

OPERATING LEASE 

Lease other than finance lease is Operating lease. Lease rental is considered as 
normal business income for lessor and normal business expenses for lessee. Rentals 
payable under an operating lease should be charged as an expense in the statement 
of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, even if the payments 
are not made on that basis, unless another systematic basis is more representative of 
the time pattern of the user’s benefit. 

LESSEE LESSOR 
Lease rent A/c      Dr. 
   To, Bank A/c 
(Being Lease rent paid) 

Bank A/c                        Dr. 
    To, Lease Rent A/c 
(Being lease rent received) 

Statement of Profit and loss a/c     Dr. 
    To, Lease rent A/c 
(Being lease rent Charged to 
Statement of Profit and Loss A/c.) 

Lease Rent A/c                          Dr. 
         To, Statement of Profit and Loss 
(Being Rental income Transferred to 
Statement of Profit and loss A/c.) 

 Depreciation A/c                     Dr. 
               To, Assets  
(Being Depreciation Charged on 
Assets) 

 Statement of Profit and loss   Dr. 
     To, Depreciation A/c 
(Being Depreciation Charged to SPL) 
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SALE AND LEASE BACK TRANSACTION 

A sale and leaseback transaction involves the sale of an asset by the vendor and the 
leasing of the same asset back to the vendor. 

FINANCE LEASE BACK OPERATING LEASE BACK 
All treatment is same as finance lease 
except the treatment of profit 
resulting from sales, which is, 
discussed as follows. 

All treatment is same as operating 
lease except the treatment of profit 
resulting from sales, which is, 
discussed as follows. 

Difference between Sale value and 
book value is treated as Deferred 
income or loss as the case may be. 
Amortise it in the ratio of 
depreciation.  

Deferred income or loss amortise to 
SPL in the ratio or lease rental over 
lease term. Difference between FAIR 
VALUE and SALES PRICE is treated as 
deferred income or loss. 

 Difference between BOOK VALUE and 
FAIR VALUE is considered as 
impairment loss, should be recognised 
immediately to SPL. 

 

TAX TREATMENT 

 ACCOUNTS INCOME TAX 
LESSOR Lease rent received treated 

as Instalment receipt of lease 
receivable. 

Lease rent is taxable as 
business income. 

 Depreciation is not charged Depreciation is allowed 
under income tax 

 
Lessee Depreciation is charged Depreciation is not allowed 
 Finance charged debited to 

SPL. 
Finance charges is not 
allowed 

 Lease rent payment is 
treated as instalment 
repayment of lease payable. 

Lease rent allowed as 
expenses. 

So ultimately lessee claim depreciation and finance charge but income tax allowed only 
lease rent. For LESSOR- lease rent is taxed and depreciation is allowed. 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-20 

EARNING PER SHARE  
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BASIC EARNING PER SHARE:       ( )

     ( )
 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARE 

Average number of share weighted in accordance with number of days for which share is 
actually held. 

Do not weight for following AND also always restate basic earning per share of earlier 
period for following 

1. Bonus share 
2. Share received on merger 
3. Bonus part of right share 

Weight only for following 

1. New issue of share 
2. Buy back 
3. Paid part of right share 
4. Share received in amalgamation in the nature of purchase. 

 

Calculation of bonus part and paid part in case of right issue 

Step 1- Calculate Post right fair value 

 
(         ) (     )

   
 

Step 2- Calculate paid part 

 𝑅𝑖𝑔ℎ𝑡 𝑠ℎ𝑎𝑟𝑒 𝑋
 

   
 

Step 3- Calculate bonus part  

 Total number of right share – Paid part of right share 

 

CALCULATION OF EARNING PER SHARE IN CASE OF DIFFERENTIAL DIVIDEND RIGHT AND 
PROPOTIONAL DIVIDEND RIGHT 

1. Differential dividend right 
i. Calculate EATESH 
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ii. Deduct special earnings from EATESH 
iii. Balance earning used for regular earning per share. 
iv. Calculate special earning per share by dividing special earning from respective no. 

of share. 
v. Basic earnings per share = Regular earning per share + Special earning per share 

2. Proportional dividend right 
i. Calculate equivalent share of each class. 
ii. Allocate EATESH in above ratio. 

iii. Calculate BEPS=  

 .       
 

 

DILUTED EARNING PER SHARE 

Earnings per share for equity share holder as well as potential equity share. 

Step 1- Identify potential equity share. That share warrant, convertible debenture, and 
convertible preference share to be converted in to equity share. Number of equity share to 
be issued on conversion is known as potential equity share.  

Step 2- Calculate incremental earnings per share 

 Incremental earnings per share 

=
          

         

    
 

 if there are more than one potential equity share then rank incremental earning per share 
in descending order that is lower the higher rank. 

Step 3- Test for dilution 

Numerator  Denominator  Ratio  

Profit   No. of share  Numerator / Denominator 

Serially check all the potential equity share in above format, if ratio is reduced on inclusion 
of potential equity share and corresponding profit then it is known as diluted earnings per 
share. 

    Diluted earnings per share = 
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Note – Also do weight for potential equity share and resultant increment in earning if it is 
requires. 

As per SEBI regulation bonus issue will be reserve for convertible debenture. 
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AS 21: CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
AS 21 should be applied in the preparation and presentation of consolidated financial 
statements for a group of enterprises under the control of a parent.  
Consolidated financial statements are the financial statements of a group presented as 
those of a single enterprise. 

Consolidated Financial Statement will be prepared by the parent company for all the 
companies that are controlled by the parent company either directly or indirectly, situated 
in India or abroad except in the following cases: 

 
a. Control is intended to be temporary because the subsidiary is acquired and held 

exclusively with a view to its subsequent disposal in the near future (within 12 
month) 
 

b.  Or subsidiary company operates under severe long-term restrictions, which 
significantly impair its ability to transfer funds to the parent.  

 
Therefore, in both the above cases, investment of parent company in the share of its 
subsidiary company is treated as investment according to AS 13. 
 
 

-  Loss of Control  
 

When a parent loses control, the investee no longer meets the definition of subsidiary, and 
so it is no longer consolidated.  
Where a parent loses control over a subsidiary, the investment will be accounted for under 
AS 13 Accounting for Investments from the date of loss of control, provided that the 
investor does not retain significant influence (in which case the investment will be 
accounted for under AS 23). 

- Existence of Control 

Control Exists when Parent Company has either:  
a. The ownership, directly or indirectly through subsidiary(ies), of more than one-

half of the voting power of an enterprise.  
 

b. Or control of the composition of the board of directors in the case of a company 
or of the composition of the corresponding governing body in case of any other 
enterprise so as to obtain economic benefits from subsidiary company’s activities.  
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- Consolidation Procedures 
In preparing consolidated financial statements, the financial statements of the parent 
and its subsidiaries should be combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together like 
items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and then certain adjustments are made.  
 
The consolidation adjustments required will vary depending on the circumstances. The 
adjustments include (but are not restricted to);  
• The elimination of the cost of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the 
parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary;  
• Recognition of goodwill or capital reserve, depending on whether the cost of the 
parent’s investment in each subsidiary is greater than or less than the parent’s portion 
of equity of each subsidiary at the date on which investment in the subsidiary is made;  
• The identification of the minority interest in the profit or loss of consolidated 
subsidiaries for the reporting period;  
• The identification of the minority interest in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries 
for the reporting period;  
• The elimination of all intra-group balances and intra-group transactions, and the 
resulting unrealised profits and losses;  
• Adjustment of the consolidated results for dividends related to outstanding cumulative 
preference shares of a subsidiary that are held by minority interests regardless of 
whether the dividends have been declared.  

 
♦Where the carrying amount of the investment in the subsidiary is different from its cost, 
the carrying amount is considered for the purpose of above computations.  
♦ Goodwill and capital reserve of different subsidiaries can be adjusted to a net figure by 
the parent in consolidated financial statement.  
♦ Goodwill of consolidated financial statement need not be written off to consolidated 
profit and loss account but test of impairment (Refer to AS 28) is made each time a 
consolidated financial statement is prepared.  
♦ When share application money and allotment money is paid separately on different 
dates, then as per AS 21, date on which investment led to acquisition to control of 
subsidiary should be taken as date of investment, i.e., date of allotment.  
♦ On the basis of above discussion, if control is gained in the subsidiary by a series of 
investments, then the date of the investment which led to holding-subsidiary relationship is 
taken into consideration and step by step calculations are made for each following 
investments.  

 
 

- Disposal of Holding 
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The results of operations of a subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial 
statement as from the date on which parent-subsidiary relationship comes into existence 
and are included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss until the date of cessation 
of the relationship. 

On disposal of the investment, consolidated profit and loss account will include the 
transactions till the date the parent-subsidiary relationship ceases to exist. 

The difference between the proceeds from the disposal of investment and the parent’s 
share in the net asset of the subsidiary on the basis of the carrying amount, on the date of 
disposal is recorded in the consolidated profit and loss account. While calculating the share 
of parent in the net asset of the subsidiary on the date of disposal, adjustment is made for 
the minority interest calculated as above. 
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS – 22  

ACCOUNTING FOR TAXES ON INCOME 

DEFERRED TAX: Actually in statement of profit and loss, accounting profit is disclosed 
whereas tax expenses is disclosed as per income tax profit (Total income), Generally 
accounting profit and Total taxable income differ due allowance and disallowance of 
different income and expenses under income tax. So, for proper calculation of profit and to 
provide appropriate amount of taxes, differed tax assets and differed tax liabilities is 
calculated and provided to mitigate the affect of timing difference. 

TIMING DIFFERENCE AND PERMANENT DIFFERENCE 

TIMING DIFFERECNCE: When difference in accounting profit and taxable total income 
resulting from those income and expenses which are capable of reversal in future, known 
as timing difference. For example-  

Under section 43B of income tax act 1961, Bonus, Interest on loan, Taxes, Employer’s 
contribution to provident fund and Leave encashment payable to employee are allowed as 
per only cash basis where as in books of accounts it is provided as per accrual basis. 
Suppose in current year such expenses is provided in accrual basis but all the above 
expenses will be disallowed as per income tax, however all the above expenses will be 
allowed in subsequent year when it is actually paid. This is called timing difference because 
it is capable of reversal in subsequent year. 

PERMANENT DIFFERENCE 

When difference resulting from income or expenses which is never taxes under income tax 
or allowed under income tax respectively, then it is called permanent difference. 

For example-  Bribe paid to any authority for doing business, amount contributed to 
political party and debited to profit and loss accounts, which is never going to allow under 
income tax act in current year or subsequent year, it is known as permanent difference 
which is never going to reversal in future. 

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 

The effect of timing difference provided in the books of accounts in the form of deferred 
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities. 

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 
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Tax on timing difference will result in deferred tax assets if timing difference is resulting 
from disallowed expenses which will be allowed later, simply speaking if in future you will 
RECOVER taxes for what excess charged in current year, then it is called deferred tax 
assetsthat is total taxable income exceed accounting income. Deferred tax assets reduced 
current tax in SPL. 

Para 15- Recognise deferred tax assets only when reasonable certainty that there will be 
sufficient future taxable income against which it can be realised. 

 

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 

An excess expense allowed in current year, which will tax in future year that is taxable 
income is less than the accounting income. Simply speaking if in future you will have to pay 
more tax for such timing difference then it is called deferred tax liabilities. Deferred tax 
liabilities increase tax expenses in SPL. 

UNABSORBED DEPRECIATION AND UNABSORBED LOSSES 

Para – 17 

Deferred tax will be created on unabsorbed depreciation or on unabsorbed losses only 
when there is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that there will be future 
income against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. 

TAX HOLIDAY 

Sometime some entity is allowed exemption from tax for certain period, it is called tax 
holiday period. 

In case of tax holiday, Recognise DTA/DTL only for the timing difference which is expected 
to reverse beyond tax holiday. Do not recognise DTA/DTL for the timing difference which is 
expected to reverse with in tax holiday. 

Section 115JB of Income tax act 1961- MINIMUM ALTERNATIVE TAX 

Minimum alternative tax is minimum amount of tax which must be paid irrespective of total 
taxable income and accounting profit. Minimum alternative tax is required to be paid 
whenever tax as per income tax falls below minimum alternative tax. 

Regular income tax is higher of MINIMUM ALTERNATIVE TAX or INCOME TAX ON TOTAL 
TAXABLE INCOME.  
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MAT CREDIT 

 When minimum alternative tax is in excess of tax as per income tax act, then minimum 
alternative tax is required to be paid, however credit available for such excess, which will be 
allowed to set off with in next 10 year. Credit is allowed in the year in which regular tax is 
more than minimum alternative tax to the extent of difference between income tax on 
total taxable income and minimum alternative tax. 
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AS 23: ACCOUNTING FOR INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES IN CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS 

An associate is an enterprise in which the investor has significant influence and which is 
neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture of the investor. 

As a general rule, significant influence is presumed to exist when an investor holds, directly 
or indirectly through subsidiaries, 20% or more of the voting power of the investee. 

Associates Accounted for using the Equity method 

The equity method is a method of accounting whereby the investment is initially recorded 
at cost, identifying any goodwill/capital reserve arising at the time of acquisition. The 
carrying amount of the investment is adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in 
the investor’s share of net assets of the investee. The consolidated statement of profit and 
loss reflects the investor’s share of the results of operations of the investee.  
From the definition, following broad conclusions can be drawn:  
a. In CFS, investment is to be recorded at cost.  
b. Any surplus or deficit in cost and net asset  on the date of acquisition to be recorded as 
goodwill or capital reserve & such should be shown with investment as deduction or 
addition as the case may be, .  
c. Distributions received from an investee reduce the carrying amount of the investment.  
d. Any subsequent change in share in net asset is adjusted in cost of investment and 
goodwill/capital reserve.  
e. Consolidated Profit & Loss shows the investor’s share in the results of operations of the 
investee.  
Investment revaluation using post acquisition profit. Such post acquisition profit will also be 
included in CPL. Calculate post acquisition profit by preparing AOP of associate. 
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ACCOUNTING STANDRDS- 24  

DISCONTINUING OPERATION 

DISCONTINUING OPERATION: An operation is said to be discontinuing operation: 

1. Which is being disposed off* pursuant to a single plan. 
2. That is a reportable segment in accordance with AS-17. 
3. That is financially and operationally separable. 

*Where disposed off means  

 Sale of substantial assets and liabilities in lump sum. 
 Sale of substantial assets and liabilities in instalment. 
 Termination of operation 

REPORTING OF DISCONTINUING OPERATION 

Reporting of discontinuing operation is required to be made when initial disclosure event 
takes place. Initial disclosure event said to be taken place in any of the following 
circumstances: 

a. Entity has entered in to binding sale agreement to sale substantial assets or liabilities. 
b. Entity has prepared a detailed plan to discontinue operation. 

 

Following event is not regarded as discontinuing operation 

1. Gradual decline in operation. 
2. Shifting of location. 
3. Outsourcing of process. 
4. Sale of investment in subsidiary. 
5. Improvement in machine. 
6. Change in product mix. 

ACCOUTING STANDARDS – 25 

INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORTING 

INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORTING: Reporting of financial statement for interim period, that 
is, for a period shorter than the financial year, is known as interim financial reporting. 
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In case of interim financial reporting, Statement of profit and loss, Balance sheet and Cash 
flow statement should be presented for following period. 

Statement 
of profit 
and loss 

1. Current year - For interim period. 
For from beginning of financial year to the end of interim 
period. 

2. For same period of previous year (for comparable SPL for 
interim period and comparable SPL for from beginning of 
financial year to the end of the interim period. 

Balance 
Sheet 

1. As at end of current interim period. 
2. As at end of immediate preceding financial year. 

Cash flow 
statement 

1. For from beginning of financial year to the end of interim 
period. 

2. For same period of previous year (comparable CFS for from 
beginning or financial year to the end of interim period.) 

 

INCOME, EXPENSES AND LOSSES RECOGNITION IN CASE OF INTERIM PERIOD 

Periodic nature income and 
expenses  

Accrual basis, that is as per period. 

Change in accounting policy Apportioned over interim period. 
Other income and Expenses Neither can be Allocated nor can be deferred. That is, 

recognised in interim period wherein it is earned or 
incurred. 

 

GUIDANCE NOTES ON INTERIM FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR TAX TREATMENT 

Following step should be following to recognised tax expenses: 

Step 1.Calculate estimated annual income. 

Step 2. Calculate income tax, Special tax and deferred tax. 

Step 3. Allocate income tax and deferred tax over interim period in the ratio of normal 
income earned over interim period. 

Step 4. Allocate Special tax in the ratio of Special income earned. 

  



117 
 

By, CA MD IMRAN (Chartered Accountant, M.com, B.com(H) ), M -9534019752, E- freebookmdimran@gmail.com      INDIA 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS -26 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS: Para- 6 Identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substance, 
used for production of goods, rendering of services or for administrative purpose. 

ASSETS: Resource under control of an entity having future economic benefit. 

RECOGNITION 

Recognise only when future economic benefit ensured from the assets and cost can be 
measured using substantial degree of estimation or reliably. Recognise intangible assets to 
the extent of future economic benefit ensure from assets and amortise it in the ratio of 
future economic benefit ensured from assets over year, if ratio not available the in straight 
line method. Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as assets. Capitalisation of 
intangible assets begin from the date of it meet criteria to recognise intangible assets till 
become developed; Subsequent expenditure should always be treated as expenses and 
expenditure incurred before it should not be capitalise. 

RESEARCH 

Para 56- Expenditure incurred during research phase or before it should not be capitalise, it 
should be recognised as expenses when it is incurred. Start up, staff training, 
advertisement, relocating expenses and preliminary expenses should also be treated as 
expenses when it is incurred that is it should not be capitalise irrespective of future 
economic benefit resulting from expenditure. 

IMPROVEMENT 

Improvement should be recognised to the extent of cost incurred into improved 
performance beyond standard performance. 

DEVELOPMENT  

Development of intangible assets would be recognised when it is satisfied all of the 
following condition: 

Mnemonics: TIMR 

1.  Technical feasibility should exist. 
2. Intention to develop should exist. 
3. Marketability of assets should exist. 
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4. Resource to finance intangible should exist.\ 

Amortization 

Intangible assets should be amortised over useful life but should not exceed 10 year in the 
ratio future economic benefit are consume by the enterprises, if the pattern cannot be 
determined reliably, the straight line method should be used. 

  



119 
 

By, CA MD IMRAN (Chartered Accountant, M.com, B.com(H) ), M -9534019752, E- freebookmdimran@gmail.com      INDIA 

 

AS 27: FINANCIAL REPORTING OF INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES. 
 
A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an 
economic activity, which is subject to joint control. 
Proportionate consolidation is a method of accounting and reporting whereby a venturer's 
share of each of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a jointly controlled entity is 
reported as separate line items in the venturer's financial statements. 
Following are the features of Proportionate Consolidation Method:  

a. Stress is given on substance over form i.e., more importance is given to the share of 
venturers in the profit or loss of the venture from the share of assets and liabilities 
rather than the nature and form of the joint venture. 

b. Venturer’s share of joint assets, liabilities, expenses and income are shown on the 
separate lines in the consolidated financial statement. 

 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS – 28 

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS  

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS: Impairment of assets means reduction in the value of assets. An 
asset is said to be impaired when carrying amount of assets falls below recoverable value of 
assets. Impairment loss charged to profit and loss account. If there is impairment loss on 
already revalued assets then impairment loss to the extent of revaluation surplus 
recognised against such revaluation surplus and beyond that charge to statement of profit 
and loss. 

Impairment loss is calculated for both CASH GENERATING UNIT and NON-CASH 
GENERATING UNIT. Following method to calculate impairment loss for cash generating unit 
and for non-cash generating unit laid down separately: 

CASH GENERATING UNIT 

Impairment loss = Carrying amount – Recoverable value 

Carrying amount = Cost of assets – Accumulated depreciation 

Recoverable value = higher of following 

 Net Sales price (Budgeted selling price – Expenses on sale) or  
 Value in use (Present value of future expected cash flow including 

scrap value.) 
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Value in use and net selling price should be calculated for each cash generating unit, 
however if unit is not able to generate cash it own, then related unit should be identified 
which is able to generate cash. Impairment of subjected assets would be recognised only 
when it related Cash generating unit is get impaired. 

Journal entry 

SPL A/c                                        Dr             xxxxxx 

            To provision for impairment loss            xxxx 

This provision for impairment loss is shown in balance sheet as accumulated depreciation, 
that is deducted from fixed assets. 

INDICATOR OF IMPAIRMENT LOSS 

Impairment of asset should be done when any of the following circumstances takes place: 

1. Decline in market value. 
2. Adverse market condition. 
3. Increased in rate of interest. 
4. Obsolescence or physical damage of assets. 
5. Restructuring of operation. 
6. Worse economic condition. 

 

NON-CASH GENERATING UNIT 

Impairment loss for non-cash generating unit is calculated in two steps, first bottom up 
approach and second top down approach. 

Step 1- Bottom up approach 

Identify cash generating unit and allocate allocable goodwill and corporate assets over Cash 
generating unit, now calculate impairment loss for all cash generating unit and such 
impairment loss allocate first toward goodwill in full and then towards in other assets 
including corporate assets in respective ratio. 

Step – II   

Top down approach 
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Calculate revise carrying amount of all assets by deducting impairment loss from carrying 
amount, now add goodwill and corporate assets which was not earlier allocated and 
calculate impairment loss as whole. And allocate impairment loss first towards goodwill and 
balance to corporate assets. 

 

REVERSAL OF IMPAIRMENT LOSS  

When indicator of reversal of impairment loss exist then reverse impairment loss to the 
extent of lower of following: 

 Impairment loss already recognised. 

Or  

 Recoverable amount -  carrying amount 

 

Indicator of reversal of impairment loss: Simply if circumstance encountered opposite of 
indicator of impairment loss (opposite of above defined 6 point of indicator of impairment 
loss). 
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ACCOUNTING STANDARDS – 29 

PROVISION, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONINGENT LIABILITIES 

PROVISION 

Provision is present obligation arising during the past event settlement of which result in an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefit and which can be measured using 
substantial degree of estimation. Provision should be made in books of accounts for such. 

It should not be discounted except decommissioning, restoration or similar liabilities at 
pre tax rate. Periodic unwinding of discount should be recognised in SPL. Periodic 
unwinding up of discount is just a finance chargeon present value, so as to ultimately 
whole amount as become equal to absolute amount. 

All the existing amount of provision made for decommissioning restoration and  similar 
liabilities should be discounted prospectively 

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and the existence 
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly with in the control of the entity. 

Only disclosure is required to be made in the notes to financial statement &report of 
approving authority. No any provision is required to be made in the financial statement. 

CONTINGENT ASSETS 

Neither any disclosure in financial statement nor any provision is required to be made. 
However, it is usually disclosed in report of approving authority. 
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DISCLOURE REQUIREMENT OF ALL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AT A ONE PLACE 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS – 1 

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

 All significant accounting policy should be disclosed at one place. If change in accounting policies then fact 
should be disclosed. 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS -2  

VALUATION OF INVENTORIES 

1. Stock valuation policies. 
2. Cost formula followed. 

 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 3  

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

1. Detail of cash and cash equivalent. 
2. Significant non- cash transaction. 
3. Undrown borrowing facilities. 
4. Cash and cash equivalent not available for use. 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS – 4 

EVENT OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE 

1. Adjusting event 
2. Non adjusting event if it affects going concern assumption. 

 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS – 5 

NET PROFIT OR LOSS, PRIOR PERIOD ITEM AND CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

1. Prior period item should be separately disclosed. 
2. If there is change in accounting policies, then following disclosure is required to be made: 

i. Old policy 
ii. New policy 
iii. Reason for change in policy 
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iv. Affect resulting from change in policies. 

 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS- 7  

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 

1. Method of calculating contract revenue. 
2. Method of calculation of degree of completion. 
3. Contract revenue recognised for each contract. 
4. Contract cost recognised for each contract. 
5. Contract profit or loss for each period 
6. Advance receipt in respect of contract. 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS -9  
REVENUE RECOGNITION 

1. Revenue recognition policies. 
2. If significant revenue has not been recognised due to uncertainty in revenue collection the fact 

should be disclosed. 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS – 10 
ACCOUNTING FOR FIXED ASSETS 

1. Gross Block of each assets with addition of assets acquired during period 
and deletion of assets sold or disposed during period, in statement form. 

2. Net block of each assets after depreciation. 
DEPRECIATION ACCOUNTING 

1. Amount of depreciation 
2. Depreciation policies 
3. Life of assets and rate of depreciation. 

 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-11 
THE AFFECT OF CHNAGE IN FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE 

1. Exchange difference transferred to Statement of profit and loss. 
2. Exchange difference capitalised in fixed assets or in FCMIT difference 

account. 
3. Closing Exchange rate. 

 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-12 
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GOVERNMENT GRANT 

1. Government grant recognition policies. 
2. Reason for refund of government grant. 

 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-13  
ACCOUNTING FOR INVESTMENT 

1. Investment recognition policies. 
2. Profit or loss on sale of investment. 
3. Interest, dividend and rent earned on investment. 
4. Salient future of investment, for example- ROI, Date of maturity, type of 

investment. 
 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-15 

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

RECONCILIATION STATEMENT 

Particular PVDBO (PERSENT VALUE OF DEFINED 

BENEFIT OBLICATION) 

PLAN ASSETS 
 

Opening balance #### #### 

Current Service cost #### ------------- 
Past Service cost #### ------------- 
Unrecognised Past 
Service cost 

#### ------------- 

Interest Cost #### ------------- 
Benefit Paid (####) (####) 

Contribution ------------- #### 

Expected return ------------- #### 

Actuarial gain or loss #### #### 

Closing balance #### #### 

 
DETAIL OF EXPENSES 
Current Service cost ##### 
Past Service cost ##### 

Unrecognised Past 
Service cost 

##### 
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Interest Cost ##### 

Expected return (#####) 

Actuarial loss ##### 

Actuarial gain (#####) 
Curtailment (#####) 

Total expenses ##### 

 
DETAIL OF INVESTMENT 
Provide detail of portfolio of investment made in plan assets. 
 
ACTUARIAL ASSUMPTION 
 Regarding following  

1. Discount rate 
2. Death rate 
3. Salary escalation rate., etc 

 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-16 
BORROWING COST 

1. Borrowing cost capitalised during the period. 
2. Borrowing cost policy of entity. 

 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-17 

SEGMENT REPORTING 

Primary segment disclosure 
1. Segment revenue 
2. Segment profit 
3. Segment assets 
4. Segment liabilities 
5. Segment capital expenditure 
6. Segment depreciation 
7. Segment other non-cash expenditure. 

Secondary segment disclosure 
1. Segment revenue 
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2. Segment assets 
3. Segment Capital expenditure during the year. 

 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-18  

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 

Following should be disclosed. 

Mnemonics: N3DTV 

1. Name of Related party. 
2. Nature of transaction. 
3. Nature of relationship. 
4. Discount or Bad debt. 
5. Transaction at Arm’lenght or at normal price. 
6. Volume of transaction. 

 

 

 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-19 

LEASE 

Disclosure requirement for lessor and lessee have been shown separately as 
follows:  
Lessee  Lessor 

1. General leasing policy. 
2. Sub lease rent received. 
3. Contingent rent paid. 
4. Assets on lease. 
5. Reconciliation statement 

1. General leasing policy 
2. Provision for doubtful debt. 
3. Contingent rent received. 
4. Unguaranteed residual 

value. 
5. Unearned finance income. 
6. Reconciliation statement. 

 
Reconciliation Statement 
It is statement disclosing the lease rental and their present value period wise. 
Period Amount Present value 
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0-12 month #### #### 

12- 60 month #### #### 

 60 month #### #### 

 
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS-20 

EARNING PER SHARE  

1. Nominal value of share along with earning per share. 
2. Basic earnings per share. 
3. Diluted earnings per share. 
4. Weighted average number of share. 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS – 22  

ACCOUNTING FOR TAXES ON INCOME 

1. Breakup of timing difference should be given. 
2. Application of AS has to be specified. 
3. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities should be offset, to disclose in balance sheet. 

ACCOUNTING STANDRDS- 24  

DISCONTINUING OPERATION 

1. Detail of Discontinuing operation. 
2. Segment of Discontinuing operation. 
3. Detail of initial disclosure event. 
4. Location affected. 
5. Assets and liabilities of discontinuing operation to be disposed. 
6. Method of disposal. 
7. Expected sale Proceeds, Actual sale proceeds. 
8. Expected and actual gain or loss on disposal. 
9. Cash flow from discontinuing operation. 
10. Period with in which operation is expected to disposed off. 
11. If it is resolved that not be disposed then reason should be shown for change in decision. 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS -26 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

1. Separately disclosed in financial statement. 
2. Addition, deletion, amortisation and impairment should be disclosed. 
3. Amortisation method and period of amortisation should be disclosed. 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS – 28 

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS  
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1. Amount of impairment loss recognised. 
2. Amount of reversal of impairment loss. 
3. Impairment loss and reversal of impairment loss which directly affect revaluation surplus 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS – 29 

PROVISION, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONINGENT LIABILITIES 

Provision should be disclosed as follows: 

Name of 
provision 

Opening 
balance 

Addition  Deletion Closing balance 

### ### ### ### ### 
### ### ### ### ### 
 

  



130 
 

By, CA MD IMRAN (Chartered Accountant, M.com, B.com(H) ), M -9534019752, E- freebookmdimran@gmail.com      INDIA 

Difference between IAS and IndAS 

IndAS IAS IndAS 
1 In case of loan liabilities which is 

classified as non-current, if condition 
is breached on the balance sheet 
date such should be classified as 
current liabilities. 

If there is breach of provision with 
respect to long term loan arrangement & 
lender agreed to waive and not to recall 
or demand payment  before the 
approval of financial statement, then 
such will continue to classify as non- 
current liabilities. 

17 In case of operating lease all lease 
rental should be charged to SPL on 
the straight line method. 

In case of operating lease, where 
escalation of lease rentals is in line with 
the expected general inflation so as to 
compensate the lessor for expected 
inflationary cost increases shall not be 
straight lined. 

101 On first time adoption of IAS 
recognise PPE by retrospective 
application of IAS-16 or the same 
should be recorded at fair value. 

Provides addition option to use carrying 
amount. 

28 For applying equity method in the 
preparation of investor financial 
statement uniform accounting 
policies should be used. 

It added the word unless impracticable 
to do so in the paragraph 35. 

28 In case of associate excess of net 
assets over cost of investment 
recognised in SPL. 

Ind AS 103- in capital reserve 

32 Equity conversion option in case of 
convertible bond considered as 
derivative liabilities. Gain or loss 
recognise in SPL 

Equity conversion option in case of 
convertible bond considered as equity 
instruments. 

103 Bargain purchase gain arising on 
business combination to be 
recognised in SPL. 

In equity as capital reserve. 
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Difference between AS and indas 

 

Generally used sentence 

1. There no such provision in the existing accounting standards. 
2. Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation in respect of such. 
3. Existing AS doesn’t deal with the same. 
4. It is differ from treatment provided under the existing accounting standards. 
5. Disclosure requirement given in indas is more detailed as compare to existing 

accounting standards. 

INDIAN ACCOUNTING 
STANDARDS 

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS 

 

Ind AS 1 and AS 1 : DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

Explicit Statement of Compliance: 
Whether comply with all Ind AS Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 

in respect of such 
Current and Non-current Classification: 
It provides criteria of classification There no such provision in the existing accounting 

standards. 
It is provided in Schedule III. 

Disclosure of Judgments and Assumptions made: 
Require disclose of judgement of management and 
key assumption. 

Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 
in respect of such 

Classification of Expenses: 
It require nature wise classification. Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 

in respect of such 
Presentation of Balance Sheet: 
At the beginning of earlier period when entity apply 
an accounting policies retrospectively. 

Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 
in respect of such 

Disclosure of Reclassified of Items: 
Requires disclosure of nature, amount and reason 
for reclassification in the notes to financial 
statements. 

Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 
in respect of such 

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income: 
Follow single statement approach in two section, 
statement of profit and loss & other comprehensive 
income. 

Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 
in respect of such 

Classification of Long-term Loan Arrangement: 
If there is breach of provision with respect to long There no such provision in the existing accounting 
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term loan arrangement & lender agreed to waive 
and not to recall or demand payment  before the 
approval of financial statement, then such will 
continue to classify as non- current liabilities. 

standards. 
 

 

Ind AS 8 and AS 5: PRIOR PERIOD ITEM AND 
CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIE 

Extraordinary Items: 
Prohibit disclosure of Extraordinary Items Existing AS doesn’t deal with the same. 

 
Definition of Accounting Policies: 
Accounting policies means accounting principle and 
method of applying those principles, base, 
conversion, rules & practice adopted in the 
preparation and presentation of financial statement 
 

Accounting policies means accounting principle and 
method of applying those principles adopted in the 
preparation and presentation of financial statement 
 

Accounting for Changes in Accounting Policies: 
Accounting policies should be applied consistently 
from one year to next year for similar transactions, 
other events and conditions. 

Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 
in respect of such 

Exceptions in Retrospective Accounting of Changes in Accounting Policies: 
Accounted retrospectively. Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 

in respect of such 
Prior Period Items: 
Ind AS 8 uses the term ‘errors’ and relates it to 
errors or omissions arising from a failure to use or 
misuse of reliable information 

Income or expenses recognised in current year due 
to error or omission in preparation of financial 
statement of earlier period, it should be provided 
prospectively. It should be disclosed separately. 

Rectification of Material Prior Period Errors: 
Ind AS 8 requires rectification of material 
Prior period errors with retrospective effect 

Existing AS 5 requires the rectification of prior 
period items with prospective effect. 

 

Ind AS 10 and AS 4: EVENT 
OCCURRING AFTER THE BALANCE 
SHEET DATE 

Non Adjusting Events if Material: 
Material non-adjusting events are required 
To be disclosed in the financial statements 

The same to be disclosed in the report of approving 
authority. 

Proposed Dividend: 
Dividend declared after reporting period but before No any provision should be made for proposed 
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approval of account cannot be recognised as a 
liability in the financial statements, because no 
obligation exists at that time. 

dividend, only disclosure in notes to accounts is 
required. It is a part of equity. 

Accounting Treatment and Disclosure in case of Inappropriateness of Fundamental 
Accounting Assumption of Going Concern: 
Requires a fundamental change in the basis of 
accounting.  

If it is not expected to continue for foreseeable 
future depreciation and provision not provided, 
assets is disclosed at realisable value and liabilities 
at payable value 

In case of breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement: 
If there is breach of provision with respect to long 
term loan arrangement & lender agreed to waive 
and not to recall or demand payment  before the 
approval of financial statement, then such will 
continue to classify as non- current liabilities. 

There no such provision in the existing accounting 
standards. 
 

 

Ind AS 34 and AS 
25 

Contents of Interim Report: 
In case of interim financial reporting, Condensed 
Statement of profit and loss, Condensed Balance 
sheet and Condensed Cash flow statement and in 
addition to the above, a condensed statement of 
changes in equity. Should be presented 

In case of interim financial reporting, Condensed 
Statement of profit and loss, Condensed Balance 
sheet and Condensed Cash flow statement should 
be presented. 

Reversal of Impairment Loss: 
Prohibits reversal of impairment loss recognised in a 
previous interim period in respect of goodwill or an 
investment in either an equity instrument or a 
financial asset carried at cost. 

There is no such specific prohibition in the 
Existing standard. 

Accounting Policies: 
Same accounting policies & method of computation 
should be followed in interim period. 

Same accounting policies should be followed. 

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets: 
Requires furnishing of information on both 
contingent liabilities and contingent assets, if they 
are significant 

Furnishing of information on contingent liabilities 
only 

Change in Accounting Policy: 
Apportioned over interim period proportionately. 
Ind AS 34 additionally requires restatement of the 

Apportioned over interim period proportionately. 
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comparable interim periods of prior financial years 
 

Ind AS 12 and AS 22 
Approach for creating Deferred Tax: 
Balance sheet approach Statement of Profit and loss approach. 
Recognition of Current and Deferred Tax: 
Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary difference can be 
utilised 

Para 15- Recognise deferred tax assets only when 
reasonable certainty that there will be sufficient 
future taxable income against which it can be 
realised 

Recognition of Current and Deferred Tax for unabsorbed losses and depreciation 
Deferred tax asset is recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences to the extent that it is 
probable that taxable profit will be available against 
which the deductible temporary difference can be 
utilised 

Para 17 
Deferred tax will be created on unabsorbed 
depreciation only when there is virtual certainty 
supported by convincing evidence that there will be 
future income against which such deferred tax 
assets can be realised. 

Disclosure of DTA and DTL in Balance Sheet: 
Ind AS 12 does not deal with this aspect except that 
it requires that income tax relating to each 
component of other comprehensive income shall be 
disclosed as current or non-current asset/liability in 
accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 1. 

It require disclosure of deferred tax assets and 
deferred tax liabilities in the balance sheet. 

Disclosure Requirements: 
Disclosure requirement given in indas is more 
detailed as compare to existing accounting 
standards. 

Limited disclosure 

 

Ind AS 2 and AS 2 : VALUATION OF INVENTORIES 

Machinery Spares: 
Inventories do not include machinery spares which 
can be used only in connection with an item of fixed 
asset and whose use is expected to be irregular; 

Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 
in respect of such 

Inventories Acquired on Deferred Settlement Terms: 
If it is acquired in deferred credit term then the 
difference between the purchase price in case of 
normal credit term and the amount paid, is 
recognised as interest expenses. 

Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 
in respect of such 

Cost Formulae: 
Use of consistent cost formula for all inventory. Specifically provides that the formula used in 

determining the cost of an item of inventory should 
reflect the fairest possible approximation to the 
cost incurred in bringing the items of inventory to 
their present location and condition. 
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Ind AS 37 and AS 29 

Discounting Provisions: 
Require discounting Prohibit discounting 

Discounting only in case of decommissioning, 
restoration or similar liabilities at pre tax 
rate. 

Disclosure of Contingent Assets: 
Requires disclosure of contingent assets in the 
financial statements when the inflow of economic 
benefits is probable. 

Prohibit disclosure in financial statement only 
disclosure in report of approving authority. 

 

Ind AS 38 and AS 26 :INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

Definition of Intangible Assets: 
Identifiable non-monetary assets without physical 
substance, used for production of goods, rendering 
of services or for administrative purpose. 

Identifiable non-monetary assets without physical 
substance, used for production of goods, rendering 
of services or for administrative purpose. 

Revenue Based Amortisation Method: 
Amortise intangible assets on the basis of revenue 
generated by an activity. 

Existing AS doesn’t deal with the same. 
 

Payment Deferred beyond Normal Credit Terms: 
If it is acquired in deferred credit term then the 
difference between the purchase price in case of 
normal credit term and the amount paid, is 
recognised as interest expenses. 

Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 
in respect of such 

Intangible Assets Acquired in Exchange: 
Recognised at fair value. Recognised at fair market value of book value. 
Intangible Assets acquired Free of Charge or for a Nominal Consideration by way of 
Government Grant: 
Recognised at fair value Recognised at nominal value or acquisition cost. 
Useful Life of an Intangible Asset: 
It may be indefinite Either finite over life of intangible assets or 10 year. 
Valuation Model as Accounting Policy: 
Either cost model or revaluation model Revaluation model is not permitted. 
Change in Method of Amortization: 
It is change in accounting estimate. It is change in accounting policies 
 

Ind AS 40 and AS 13 : ACCOUNTING FOR 
INVESTMENT 

Disclosure requirement given in indas is more 
detailed as compare to existing accounting 

Limited guidance on investment propeties 
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standards. It is detail standards dealing with various 
aspect. 
Applies to Owner 
Lessee under Financial Lease 
Lessor under operating lease 
Holds Land or Building or a part of Building for 
earning rentals or capital appreciation 
Assets can be under operating lease 

Lease cover under AS 19 

Ind AS 36 and AS 28: IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 

Financial Assets: 
Also applies to financial assets such as investment in 
subsidiary, associate and joint venture. 

Doesn’t apply on such assets. 

Biological Assets: 
Specifically excludes biological assets related to 
agricultural activity. 

Does not specifically exclude biological assets. 

Impairment Testing for an Intangible Asset with an Indefinite Useful Life: 
Annual impairment testing for intangible assets. Not require the annual impairment testing for 

goodwill. 
Reversal of Goodwill: 
Prohibits the recognition of reversals of impairment 
loss for goodwill. 

May be in exceptional circumstances. 

Bottom up and Top Down Test: 
There is no bottom-up or top-down approach for 
allocation of impairment loss over goodwill and 
other assets. 

Impairment loss for non-cash generating unit is 
calculated in two steps, first bottom up approach 
and second top down approach. 

 

Ind AS 17 and AS 19 : 
LEASE 

Land: 
Dealing with leases of land and building applicable. Excludes leases of land from its scope 
Treatment of Initial Direct Costs: 
It is differ from treatment provided under the 
existing accounting standards. 
 

 

Current/Non-current Classification of Lease Liabilities: 
Requires current/noncurrent classification of lease 
Liabilities if such classification is made for other 
liabilities. 

Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 
in respect of such. 
 

Sale and Leaseback Transaction: 
Not specified the method of amortisation. That is 
retains the deferral and amortisation principle. 

Contain detailed defer and amortisation method. 

Recognition of Lease Payments: 
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In case of operating lease, where escalation of lease 
rentals is in line with the expected general inflation 
so as to compensate the lessor for expected 
inflationary cost increases shall not be straight 
lined. 

Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 
in respect of such. 
 

 

Ind AS 105 and AS 24: DISCONTINUING OPERATION 
Scope and Objective: 
Deals with accounting for non-current assets held 
for sale, and the presentation and disclosure of 
discontinued operations. 

Deals only with Discontinuing operation. 

Discontinued vs Discontinuing Operations: 
A discontinued operation is a component of an 
entity that either has been disposed off or is 
classified as held for sale. 

DISCONTINUING OPERATION: An operation is said 
to be discontinuing operation:  
1. Which is being disposed off pursuant to a single 
plan.  
2. That is a reportable segment in accordance with 
AS-17.  
3. That financially and operationally separable? 

Time Period: 
The sale should be expected to qualify for 
recognition as a completed sale within one year 
from the date of classification with certain 
exceptions 

Does not specify any time period in this regard as it 
relates to discontinuing operations. 

Initial Disclosure Event: 
Not mention. Reporting of discontinuing operation is required to 

be made when initial disclosure event takes place 
Measurement: 
Lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs 
to sell, and are presented separately in the balance 
sheet. 

AS 10 deal with itProfit or loss on sale of fixed assets 
is recognised in Statement of Profit and loss. 

 

Ind AS 24 and AS 18: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 
Definition of Relative: 
“a close member of the family of a person” 
Who may be expected to influence, or be influenced 
by, that person in their dealings with the entity, 
including: 
A. That person’s children, spouse or domestic 
partner, brother, sister, father and mother; 
B. Children of that person’s spouse or domestic 
partner; and 
C. Dependants of that person or that person’s 
spouse or domestic partner. 

“relatives of an individual 

State Controlled Enterprise: 
“an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or 
significantly influenced by a government.” 

“an enterprise which is under the control of the 
Central Government and/or any 
StatGovernment(s)”. 
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Key Management Personnel: 
Includes KMP of entity and parent. KMP of entity only. 
Next Most Senior Parent: 
Requires an additional disclosure as to the name of 
the next most senior parent which produces 
consolidated financial statements for public use 

There no such provision in the existing accounting 
standards 

 

Ind AS 108 and 
AS 17 

Identification of Segments: 
It is based on ‘management approach’ i.e. Operating 
segments are identified based on the internal 
reports regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief 
operating decision maker. 

Segment is identified as business segment or 
geographical segment. Business segment identified 
on the basis of production of good or rendering of 
services. Geographical segment identified on the 
basis of situated in different geographical location. 

Single Reportable Segment: 
Requires certain disclosures even in case of entities 
having single reportable segment 

There is not such requirement. 

Interest Expense: 
Requires the separate disclosures about interest 
revenue and interest expense of each reportable 
segment 

Excludes interest 

Disclosures: 
Disclosure requirement given in indas is more 
detailed as compare to existing accounting 
standards. 
 

 

 

Ind AS 7, AS 3 :CASH FLOW STATEMENT 

Bank Overdraft Repayable on Demand: 
Includes bank overdrafts which are repayable on 
demand as a part of cash and cash equivalents. 

Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 
in respect of such. 
 

Treatment of Cash Payments to property dealer who held for sale, as Rent. 
Cash flows from operating activities Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 

in respect of such. 
Cash Flows associated with Extraordinary Activities: 
Separate disclosure. Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 
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in respect of such. 
 

Ind AS 20, AS 12 :GOVERNMENT GRANT 

Grant in respect of Non Depreciable Assets: 
Grants should be recognised as income over the 
periods which bear the cost of meeting the 
obligation. It, therefore, specifically prohibits 
recognition of grants directly in the shareholders’ 
funds. 

Credited to capital reserve or shown as 
deduction from the gross value of assets. 

Government Grants in the Nature of Promoters Contribution: 
Grants should be recognised as income over the 
periods which bear the cost of meeting the 
obligation. It, therefore, specifically prohibits 
recognition of grants directly in the shareholders’ 
funds. 

Credited to capital reserve 

Valuation of Non-monetary Grants given Free or at a Concessional Rate: 
Fair value. Nominal value. 
Accounting for Grant Related to Assets including Non-monetary Grant: 
Only deferred income. Either deferred income or reduced from cost of 

assets. 
 

Ind AS 21, AS 11 :THE AFFECT OF CHNAGE IN 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE 

Forward Exchange Contracts and other similar Financial Instruments: 
Excludes from its scope forward exchange contracts 
and other similar financial instruments, which are 
treated in accordance with Ind AS 109. 

There is no such exclusion. 

Exchange Differences arising on Translation of Certain Long-term Monetary Items 
From Foreign Currency to Functional Currency: 
Dealt in accordance with indas 101. 
Such an entity may continue to apply the 
accounting policy so opted for such long-term 
foreign currency monetary items as per the 
previous GAAP. 

PARA-46   
Depreciable Assets: Exchange difference related to 
depreciable assets, Capitalised to assets and 
depreciate It over life of assets.  
Non depreciable assets: Exchange difference shown 
as FOREIGN CURRENCY MONETARY ITEM (FCMIT)  
Difference account under head of RESEREVE AND 
SURPLUS if credit balance and under head of non-
current assets if Debit balance. It is written off over 
life of LTFCMI but not beyond 31st March 2020. 

Approach for Translation: 
Functional currency approach. Determine the foreign operations as non –integral 

foreign operations OR integral foreign for 
accounting purpose. 
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Ind AS 23, AS 16: BORROWING COST  

Qualifying Asset measured at Fair Value: 
Does not require an entity to apply this standard to 
borrowing costs directly attributable to the  
acquisition, construction or production of a 
qualifying asset measured at fair value, 

AS 16 does not provide for such scope relaxation. 

Applicability to Inventories: 
Not apply to inventory which are repetitive in 
nature. 

Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific explanation 
in respect of such. 

Explanation of Substantial Period of Time: 
It doesn’t contain any Specific explanation in 
respect of such. 

Qualifying assets means, Assets which takes 
substantial period of time to get ready to use or 
sale, that is exceeding 12 month. 

Disclosure of Capitalisation Rate: 
Require disclosure, Not require any disclosure. 
 
Ind AS 19, AS 15 :EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
Constructive Obligations: 
It cover .  It doesn’t cover. 
Definition of Employee:  
Includes all director. Includes only whole time director. 
Qualified Actuary: 
It specifically encourage the valuation by qualified 
actuary. 

Does not specifically encourage the same 

Recognition of Actuarial Gains and Losses: 
In other comprehensive income.  In SPL. 
Financial Assumptions: 
Based on market expectation. Not clarify the same. 
Discounting of Post-employment Benefit Obligations: 
Require discounting with reference to market yields 
at the end of the reporting period on high quality 
corporate bonds 

The rate used to discount post-employment benefit 
obligations should always be determined by 
reference to market yields at the balance sheet date 
on government bond. 

 
Ind AS 33 and AS 20 EARNING PER SHARE 
Presentation of Basic and Diluted EPS from Continuing and Discontinued Operations: 
Requires presentation of basic and diluted 
EPS from continuing and discontinued 
operations separately. 

Existing AS doesn’t contain any Specific 
explanation in respect of such. 

Options held by the Entity on its Shares: 
Deals with same. Doesn’t deal. 
Disclosure of EPS with and without Extraordinary Items: 
Since as per Ind AS 1, ‘Presentation of 
Financial Statements’, no item can be 
presented as extraordinary item, Ind AS 33 

Existing AS 20 requires the disclosure of EPS 
with and without extraordinary items. 
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does not require the aforesaid disclosure. 
 

Ind AS 28, AS 23 

Definition of Significant Influence: 
‘power to participate in the financial and 
operating policy decisions of the investee 
but is not control or joint control over those 
policies’. Ind AS 28 defines joint control also.  

‘power to participate in the financial and/or 
operating policy decisions of the investee 
but is not control over those policies’.  

Potential Equity Shares: 
existence and effect of potential voting 
rights that are currently exercisable or 
convertible are considered when assessing 
whether an entity has significant influence 
or not.  

For considering share ownership for the 
purpose of significant influence, potential 
equity shares of the investee held by 
investor are not taken into account  
 

Equity Method: 
Ind AS 28 requires application of equity 
method in financial statements other than 
separate financial statements even if the 
investor does not have any subsidiary.  

only when the entity has subsidiaries and 
prepares Consolidated Financial Statements.  
 

Exemption: 
No such exemption is provided in Ind AS 28.  
 

One of the exemptions from applying equity 
method in the existing AS 23 is where the 
associate operates under severe long-term 
restrictions that significantly impair its ability 
to transfer funds to the investee.  

Explanation regarding the term ‘Near Future’: 
This explanation has not been given in the 
Ind AS 28 as such situations are covered by 
Ind AS 105, ‘Non-current Assets Held for Sale 
and Discontinued Operations’  

An explanation has been given in existing AS 
23 regarding the term ‘near future’  
 

Investment Classified as Held for Sale: 
Ind AS 28 requires a portion of an 
investment in an associate or a joint venture 
to be classified as held for sale if the disposal 
of that portion of the interest would fulfill 
the criteria to be classified as held for sale in 
accordance with Ind AS 105.  

 
AS 23 does not specifically deal with this 
aspect.  
 

Difference in Reporting Dates: 
As per Ind AS 28, length of difference in the 
reporting dates of the associate or joint 

The existing AS 23 permits the use of 
financial statements of the associate drawn 
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venture should not be more than three 
months unless.  
 

upto a date different from the date of 
financial statements of the investor when it 
is impracticable to draw the financial 
statements of the associate upto the date of 
the financial statements of the investor.  
 There is no limit on the length of difference 
in the reporting dates of the investor and 
the associate  

Accounting Policies: 
Both the existing AS 23 and Ind AS 28 
require that similar accounting policies 
should be used for preparation of investor’s 
financial statements and in case an associate 
uses different accounting policies for like 
transactions, appropriate adjustments shall 
be made to the accounting policies of the 
associate. 

The existing AS 23 provides exemption to 
this that if it is not possible to make 
adjustments to the accounting policies of 
the associate, the fact shall be disclosed 
along with a brief description of the 
differences between the accounting policies.  
 

Share in Losses: 
As per Ind AS 28, carrying amount of 
investment in the associate or joint venture 
determined using the equity method 
together with any long term interests that, 
in substance form part of the entity’s net 
investment in the associate or joint venture 
shall be considered for recognising entity’s 
share of losses in the associate or joint 
venture.  

 
As per existing AS 23, investor’s share of 
losses in the associate is recognised to the 
extent of carrying amount of investment in 
the associate.  
 

Ind AS 103 and AS 14 

Scope 
Defines a business combination which has a wider 
scope. 

Deals only with amalgamation. 

Methods for Accounting: 
Only the acquisition method for every business 
combination 

An amalgamation may be either in the nature of 
merger of nature of purchase. 

Assets and Liabilities: 
At fair value. At book value or fair value. 
Amortisation of Goodwill: 
The goodwill is not amortised but tested for 
impairment on annual basis in accordance with Ind 
AS 36 

The goodwill arising on amalgamation in the nature 
of purchase is amortised over a periodnot exceeding 
five years 

Reverse Acquisitions: 
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Deal with the same. Does not deal with the same. 
Bargain Purchase Gain: 
Recognised in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in equity as capital reserve, 

It shall be recognised directly in equity as capital 
reserve 

 
Ind AS 111 and AS 21 
Mandatory preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements: 
Makes the preparation of Consolidated Financial 
Statements mandatory for a parent 

Not mandatory. 

Control: 
 More than one-half of the voting power of an 

enterprise or control of the composition of the 
board of directors or governing body 

Clarification on more than one Parent of a Subsidiary: 
Doesn’t provide clarification Provides clarification. 
Difference in Reporting Dates: 
Not exceeding 3 month. Not exceeding 6 month. 
Uniform accounting policies: 
Require the use of uniform accounting policies. Require the use of uniform accounting policies. 

Unless it is impracticable. 
Presentation of Non-controlling Interest in CFS: 
Non-controlling interests shall be presented in the 
consolidated balance sheet within equity separately 
from the parent shareholders’ equity. 

Minority interest should be presented in the 
consolidated balance sheet separately from 
liabilities and equity of the parent’s shareholders. 

Exclusion from Consolidation: 
No such exclusion Excludes from consolidation when investment is 

temporary. 
 
Ind AS 110 andas 27 
Types of Joint Arrangement/Joint Venture: 
A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a 
joint venture. 

Recognises three forms of joint venture namely: (a) 
jointly controlled operations, (b) jointly controlled 
assets and (c) jointly controlled entities. 

Equity method: 
Provides that a venturer can recognise its interest in 
joint venture using only equity method 

Prescribes the use of proportionate consolidation 
method only. 

 
Major Changes in Ind AS 11 vis-à-vis Notified AS 7  
 
(i) Inclusion of Borrowing costs: 
Ind AS 11 does not specifically make 
reference to Ind AS 23.  
 

Existing AS 7 includes borrowing costs as per 
AS 16, Borrowing Costs, in the costs that 
may be attributable to contract activity in 
general and can be allocated to specific 
contracts, 

(ii) Fair Value 
Ind AS 11 requires that contract revenue Existing AS 7 does not recognise fair value 
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shall be measured at fair value of 
consideration received/receivable.  
 

concept as contract revenue is measured at 
consideration received/receivable 

(iii) Accounting for Service Concession Arrangements 
Appendix A of Ind AS 11 deals with 
accounting aspects involved in such 
arrangements and Appendix B of Ind AS 11 
deals with disclosures of such arrangements. 

Existing AS 7 does not deal with accounting 
for Service Concession Arrangements, i.e., 
the arrangement where private sector entity 
(an operator) constructs or upgrades the 
infrastructure to be used to provide the 
public service and operates and maintains 
that infrastructure for a specified period of 
time 

  
Major Changes in Ind AS 18 vis-à-vis Notified AS 9  
(i) Definition of ‘Revenue’: 
Definition of ‘revenue’ given in Ind AS 18 is 
broad compared to the definition of 
‘revenue’ given in existing AS 9 because it 
covers all economic benefits that arise in the 
ordinary course of activities of an entity 
which result in increases in equity, other 
than increases relating to contributions from 
equity participants. 

On the other hand, as per the existing AS 9, 
revenue is gross inflow of cash, receivables 
or other consideration arising in the course 
of the ordinary activities of an enterprise 
from the sale of goods, from the rendering 
of services, and from the use by others of 
enterprise resources yielding interest, 
royalties and dividends.  
 

(ii) Measurement of Revenue: 
requires the revenue to be measured at fair 
value of the consideration received or 
receivable.  
 

As per existing AS 9, revenue is recognised at 
the nominal amount of consideration 
receivable. 

(iii) Barter Transactions: 
Ind AS 18 specifically deals with the 
exchange of goods and services with goods 
and services of similar and dissimilar nature. 

This aspect is not dealt with in the existing 
AS 9. 

(iv) Recognition of Separately Identifiable Components:  
Ind AS 18 provides guidance on application 
of recognition criteria to the separately 
identifiable components of a single 
transaction in order to reflect the substance 
of the transaction. 

Existing AS 9 does not specifically deal with 
the same. 

(v) Recognition of Interest:  
recognised using effective interest rate 
method 

recognition of revenue from interest on time 
proportion basis 
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(vi) customer loyalty programme 
: Ind AS 18 specifically provides guidance 
regarding revenue recognition in case the 
entity is under any obligation to provide free 
or discounted goods or services or award 
credits to its customers due to any customer 
loyalty programme. 

Existing AS 9 does not deal with this aspect. 

(vii) Disclosure Requirements: 
Disclosure requirements given in the Ind AS 
18 are more detailed as compared to 
existing AS 9. 

Less disclosure. 

  
 

 

 


